

A NEW DAY.

Bid Specifications

for

Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for Restaurant Operators in St. Johns River Park / Friendship Fountain Company
Buyer
E-mail

City of Jacksonville
Ruth Keith
RKeith1@coj.net

This document has important legal consequences. The information contained in this document is proprietary of City of Jacksonville. It shall not be used, reproduced, or disclosed to others without the express and written consent of City of Jacksonville.

All responses to this solicitation must be submitted through the City's e-procurement system 1Cloud. If you need to refresh yourself on the instructions for viewing and responding to solicitations, please refer to the training information posted on the supplier portal located on the COJ Procurement Division website.

https://www.jacksonville.gov/departments/finance/procurement

Table of Contents

1 Overview	
1.1 General Information	
1.2 Schedule	
1.3 Negotiation Controls	
1.4 Response Rules.	∠
1.5 Terms	∠
1.6 Attachments.	∠
2 Requirements	
2.1 Affirmation	5
2.2 Submittal Statement	
2.3 General Requirements	
2.4 RFP Non-Construction Requirements	13
2.5 Indemnification and Insurance Requirements.	29
2.6 Sample Services Contract	34
2.7 Evaluation Criteria - Preliminary Response Stage	36
3 Lines	
3.1 Line Information	40
3.2 Line Details	40
3.2.1 Line 1	
4 Contract Terms.	40

1 Overview

1.1 General Information

Title Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for Restaurant Operators in St.Johns River Park

Synopsis The Downtown Investment Authority ("DIA") and the Parks Department are

seeking to prequalify and identify interested restaurant operators through the issuance of a Request for Qualifications to operate a standalone restaurant in St.

Johns River Park/ Friendship Fountain.

Amendment Date 10/7/25 2:36 PM

Amendment Description See 17067-25 ADDENDUM 1 (ATTACHMENT) for Clarification to the RFP:

1) Close Date: extended to OCTOBER 24, 2025 at 4:00 p.m.

2) A 2nd Non-Mandatory Meeting will be held on OCTOBER 14, 2025 at 10:30 a.

3) See page 2 - 3 of the Summary Addendum for RFP.

Buyer Ruth Keith Outcome Purchase Order

E-Mail **RKeith1@coj.net** Two Stage Evaluation **Yes**

This is a two stage negotiation and all responses will be evaluated in two stages.

1.2 Schedule

Preview Date Open Date 10/7/25 2:36 PM

Close Date 10/24/25 4:00 PM Award Date

Time Zone Eastern Standard Time

Pre-Bid Conference: Microsoft Teams Meeting - Meeting ID:

Location 266 114 664 090 Password: tY9uw933

Date/Time

1.3 Negotiation Controls

Response Visibility Sealed

Lines Settings

Rank Indicator 1,2,3...

Ranking Method Multiattribute scoring

1.4 Response Rules

This negotiation is governed by all the rules displayed below.

- 2	This he golidion is governed by all the thies displayed below.			
		Rule		
	\checkmark	Suppliers are required to respond with full quantity on each line		
	V	Suppliers are allowed to revise their submitted response up until Bid closing		

1.5 Terms

Payment Terms Freight Terms Freight Prepaid Shipping Method Best Way FOB FOB Destination

Negotiation Currency USD (US Dollar) Price Precision 2

1.6 Attachments

File Name or URL	Type	Description
17067-25 Addendum 1.pdf	File	17067-25 Addendum 1.pdf

2 Requirements

*Response is required

Suppliers must satisfy the following requirements. By submitting a response, Supplier warrants and represents that it satisfies all requirements. Failure to meet any of the requirements may result in the response being rejected as non-responsive. Any conflict between any section within this document shall be resolved by deferring to the most restrictive language of the solicitation document. Suppliers must respond to each section through the drop-down selection or arrows at the top right. All response attachments should be properly labeled to identify supplier and file contents.

2.1	Affirmation (Preliminary Response Stage)
*1.	
	Type name and title of person submitting bid in the comments box.
	Select one of the following:-
	a. Acknowledge
	Comments:
*2.	
	Type name of company in the comments box.
	Select one of the following:-
	a. Acknowledge
	Comments:
*3.	No Alterations: Bidder has not altered the original Solicitation Document in any way and further understands that any such alteration of the original solicitation document may result in rejection of the bid.
	Select one of the following:-
	a. Acknowledge
*4.	Solicitation Silence: The Solicitation Silence policy is in effect for this solicitation and all communications related to this solicitation must be in writing to the designated procurement representative. Violations of the solicitation silence policy may result in the rejection/disqualification of the submission.
	Select one of the following:-
	a. Acknowledge
*5.	Legal authorization and solicitation specific minimum requirements: All bidders must be legally authorized to do business in Duval County and shall comply with all minimum requirements for this bid. Failure to submit evidence for meeting any of these requirements may be grounds for rejection. Vendor shall provide proof of applicable local

business licenses and particulars such as specific licensure, experience on similar projects, years of expertise in the area

	etc.		
	Select one of the following:-		
	a. Acknowledge		
*6.	agency requiring the goods or s	services described	er certifies that no official or employee of the City or independent in the specifications has a material financial interest in the Supplier's e attached Conflict of Interest Statement fully detailing any potential
	Attachments:		
	File Name or URL	Type	Description
	CONFLICT OF INTEREST CERTIFICA	File	
*7.	described in the specificati are optional) b. Contractor cannot certify services described in the attachments are required) Equal Business Opportunity Progrencourages the utilization and par	ons has a material y that no official of specifications has ram: Pursuant to Pa ticipation of Jackson	loyee of the City or independent agency requiring the goods or services I financial interest in the Contractor's company. (Response attachments or employee of the City or independent agency requiring the goods or a material financial interest in the Contractor's company. (Response at 6 of Chapter 126, Jacksonville Ordinance Code, the City of Jacksonville Inville Small and Emerging Businesses (JSEBs) in its contract awards based a program to reflect the philosophy with regards to enhancing participation of areas of procurement.
	Attachments:		
	File Name or URL	Type	Description
	JSEB Project Goals Language.pd	File	
	Select one of the following:-		
	☐ a. Acknowledge(Response of	attachments are oi	ptional)
*8.			dgment serves as my electronic signature and has the same force and
	Select one of the following:- a. Acknowledge		
2.2	Submittal Statement (Preli	minary Respon	se Stage)
	Submittal Statement		-
	D'11	1. 1.	1.6.24

Bidder certifies that this proposal is made in good faith, without collusion or connection with any other entity bidding on this work.

Bidder has examined and read all Drawings, Specifications, General and Special Conditions, and other Contract Documents, and all Addenda thereto; and is acquainted with and fully understands the extent and character of the work covered by this Proposal and the specified requirements, for the proposed work.

Bidder certifies that no officer or agent of the CITY will directly or indirectly benefit from this bid. Bidder states that this Proposal is made in conformity with the Contract Documents and agrees that in case of any discrepancy or differences between its Proposal and the Contract Documents, the provisions of the latter shall prevail.

Bidder certifies that it has carefully examined the foregoing Proposal after the same was completed and has verified every item placed thereon; and agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless the CITY against any cost, damage or expense which may be incurred or caused by any error in the Bidder's preparation of same.

Bidder states that all applicable taxes are included in the unit prices or Lump Sum Bid and acknowledges this project is not exempt from the State or Local Sales or Use taxes, and payment of such taxes is the responsibility of the Bidder.

The undersigned Bidder agrees to keep its bid in effect for 120 calendar days after the Bid Opening date to allow the CITY time to award the bid, should it be awarded, and time to prepare and execute the contract (or issue the purchase order). This time period begins at the time bids are opened and ends upon the issuance of Notice to Proceed (NTP) by the CITY. The bid prices shall remain in effect throughout the life of the Contract. Failure of the CITY to issue NTP within the specified time period shall allow Bidder to withdraw its Bid and terminate its contract without penalty or forfeiture of Bid Bond. Failure of the CITY to issue NTP within the specified time period shall not entitle Bidder to an adjustment of its Bid prices, unless mutually agreeable by the CITY.

Bidder certifies, under penalty of perjury and contract rescission, that it has all required licenses to perform the work required to fulfill the terms of the contract resulting from a successful bid. Furthermore, the Bidder affirms that all subcontractors requiring to be licensed are listed in its response and are properly licensed to perform work on their respective portions of this project.

Select one	of	the	fol	low	ing:-
------------	----	-----	-----	-----	-------

a. Acknowledge

2.3 General Requirements (Preliminary Response Stage)

*1. **Scope of Services**: The Downtown Investment Authority of the City of Jacksonville, Florida is currently accepting bids to obtain source(s) of supply for the item(s) or service(s) as outlined in the bid documents provided. See the attachment(s)

for additional information.

The purpose of this Request for Qualifications ("RFQ") is to prequalify restaurant operators to receive invitations to respond to a formal Request for Proposal ("RFP") for the operation of a full-service restaurant within the St. Johns River Park / Friendship Fountain in a location illustrated by **Exhibit 'A'**. For clarity purposes, this RFQ is to identify qualified, interested restaurant operators who will be invited to submit their proposals to a subsequent RFP. The RFP is the mechanism by which the City – DIA will select a vendor to be the exclusive vendor for food and beverage services in a stand-alone restaurant built in St. Johns River Park next to Friendship Fountain.

In addition to the operation of a full-service restaurant, an operator should also be prepared to offer catering services to those using the adjacent wedding venue for events permitted through the Parks Department or Special Events though said permit holder may also bring in outside food sources. Additionally, certain holidays — including but not limited to July 4th, New Year's Eve, and the Holiday Boat Parade — may require the supplementation of food trucks around the park to accommodate increased attendance. To ensure the restaurant is able to be enjoyed by as diverse an audience as possible, single themed concepts will not be permitted unless regionally appropriate. (e.g., seafood is okay, sushi is not).

The Vendor shall provide all necessary labor, supervision, products, supplies and equipment, as required to successfully operate the following: The restaurant will be approximately 2,400 square feet of conditioned, first floor restaurant space plus approximately 1,000 square feet of covered patio. There will also be approximately 1,800 sq ft of usable rooftop space with a conditioned service bar, storage closet and bathroom. Following previously provided public input, the restaurant will be a casual setting that is family friendly. The service style will be fast casual, full-service or a combination of both. A full bar is required.

The minimum qualifications listed below will be used by the City – DIA solely for the purposes of prequalifying potential restaurant operators who have demonstrated successful operation of a full-service restaurant, and who would have interest in operating such within the St. Johns River Park also known as Friendship Fountain Park. As more fully discussed in the "Food and Beverage Operator General Description and Scope", a subsequent Request for Proposal ("RFP") will be issued to those pre-qualified operators. The RFP will include additional and more detailed provisions for selection of a vendor from the list of prequalified operators. This RFQ, in summary, demonstrates that the Proposer is qualified to conduct a successful food and beverage operation ("restaurant").

The City, in its sole discretion, will determine if the Proposer meets the minimum qualifications by evaluating the information supplied by the Proposer, and if necessary, conducting investigations, interviews, site visits, or use any other means deemed appropriate by the City. Proposers must clearly state and substantiate how they meet the minimum qualifications stated below. Any Proposal received from a Proposer that does not meet all the minimum experience and qualification requirements will be deemed non-responsive.

General Operating Provisions: the following are general operating provisions to illustrate the City – DIA desired operating parameters. More detailed operating and lease terms will be included in a subsequent RFP.

- 1. The anticipated term of the lease is five (5) years with two (2) five (5) year renewals.
 - 2. Operator will be provided a warm shell and expected to build out the interior finishes as well as provide following:
 - •€€€€€€€ attended and refrigeration equipment and any additional food and beverage equipment including flatware, glassware, smallware, etc., for dining and catering services; and

provided by the City; and

- •€€€£££££quipment for the main restaurant and roof top bars; and

- 3. Operate the Restaurant at a minimum of dinner six (6) days a week and brunch on Saturday and Sunday. Additional hours at the discretion of the operator. (For example: Operate the Restaurant at a minimum, Tuesday to Friday from 4:00 p.m. until 9:00 p.m. and from 11:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on Saturday and Sunday).
- 4. Coordinate any food or beverage needs with groups desiring the use of adjacent wedding venue or other areas of the Park to hold an event, if requested.
- 5. Aggressively market and advertise the new F&B Operator's restaurant opening. Continue appropriate marketing throughout the term of the Contractual Agreement.
- 6. The restaurant will be within a highly used public park. Staff the Restaurant with customer service-oriented people who are professional, friendly, and courteous to the public.
- 7. Maintain books of accounts, reports, and records customarily used in this type of operation.
- 8. Attend a meeting in person or via video conference, at least quarterly, or more often as needed, with the Parks Department to discuss the schedule of events and to coordinate events and functions between the various departments.
- 9. Provide the City with priority for scheduling events that the City will want to book with the Vendor to provide food and beverages (including but not limited to 4th of July, Holiday Boat Parade, and New Years Eve).
- 10. Proof of Certificate of Insurance (COI) will not be required for this Request for Qualifications (RFQ). However it will be required at the time of Request for Proposal (RFP) bidding process.

Attachments:

File Name or URL	Туре	Description
EXHIBIT	File	EXHIBIT A
A_RESTAURANT_SITEP		
LAN.		

	THE INMINE OF CIVE	Type	Description
	EXHIBIT A_RESTAURANT_SITEP LAN.	File	EXHIBIT A
	Select one of the following:- a. Acknowledge(Response of	attachments are o _l	ptional)
*2.	Specifications : Provide all iter Terms and Conditions specified		dentified on each line or identified below in accordance with all other
*3.	Select one of the following:- a. Acknowledge(Response of	attachments are op	otional)
٠3.	evaluated. By submitting, th	e Bidder warrant	atory minimum requirements in order to have their Responses is and represents that it satisfies these requirements. Failure to be Response not being evaluated and being rejected as non-
	a. Provide evidence dem in the Scope of Services.	nonstrating they l	nave experience in providing services similar to those described
		of the proposer's	s of at least three (3) references of vendors or clients with direct involvement in restaurants, catering, and operations. One of the supplier.
	c. Food & Beverage (F&B)	Experience – Ow	ner and Operating Partner:
	The minimum ownership qua standalone restaurant or resort.	lifications are fiv	e (5) of the most recent seven (7) years as principal Owner of a
	The minimum Operating Partn the most recent ten (10) years is		re seven (7) years of successful food and beverage experience within
	• Operation, manage	ment, and/or owne	ership of a standalone restaurant or resort; and

	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
1	Select one of the following:- a. Acknowledge(Response attachments are optional)
	To maintain comparability and facilitate the evaluation process, Responses shall be organized in the manner set forth below. Tab delineations for each of the sections would be helpful.
	The formal response to the RFQ - Non-Construction. Each proposer will clearly indicate within the Cover Letter that your response is for the RFQ.
	The RFQ shall contain no more than thirty (30) single-sided, 1.5-spaced, 8½" by 11" pages, excluding appendices. The font style shall be Arial with a minimum font size of 11 points. The title page and a single-page cover letter will not be counted as part of the 30-page limit. A cover letter in excess of one page and any other information submitted beyond that noted in the requirements will be counted as part of the 30-page limit. Any RFP exceeding these formal guidelines will be rejected without being considered by the City. Provide proof of insurance, bonding capacity, and licensing. Copies of these documents may be included as appendices and will not be counted against the 30-page limit.
	1) Title Page: Include only RFQ Title, RFQ Number, Contractor's full name, address, phone number.
	2) Cover Letter: Include only the following:
	Date of Letter.
	RFQ Title and Number
	Bidder's full name, address and phone number.
	Names of the persons who will be authorized to make representations for the Bidder, their titles, addresses

(including email address) and telephone numbers.
Bidder's Federal Employer ID Number.
Acknowledgement that (i) the Response is based on the terms set forth in the RFQ and all amendments thereto posted on City's website as of the date of the Response, and (ii) the Bidder will be responsible for monitoring City's website for subsequent amendments and for either maintaining, amending, or withdrawing the Response prior to the Response Due Date based on those subsequent amendments.
Signature of Authorized Representative.
3) Required Forms. Attach all forms identified in requirements section. Examples of forms that may be required include:
Business References. (if requested)
Equal Business Opportunity Program Forms (if requested).
Proposal Bond (if requested)
Insurance Agent Acknowledgment (if requested)
4) Proof of Minimum Requirements. Responses will be accepted ONLY from companies meeting the minimum requirements in section of the RFQ. Bidders must provide clear documentation that they meet the minimum requirements.

5) Statement of Qualifications. This portion of the Response will be used to provide the information City needs to evaluate how well the Contractor meets the criteria listed in the Evaluation Criteria. <u>Failure to provide adequate information on any criterion will result in lower scores and could result in rejection of the Response as non-responsive</u>. Please divide this portion of the Response into subsections that correspond to each of the listed criteria.

Attach Overall Proposal Document Here, Use the following naming convention: Supplier Name Overall Proposal Document.

	Select one of the following:-
	☐ a. Acknowledge(Response attachments are required)
*5.	Federal Funding does not apply to this RFP
	Select one of the following:- □ a. Acknowledge

2.4 RFP Non-Construction Requirements (Preliminary Response Stage)

*1.

1. Introduction

The City of Jacksonville ("Buyer") intends to hire an individual or firm ("Contractor") to provide the services described in this Request for Proposal ("RFP"). Persons interested in submitting a response to this RFP (a "Response") should carefully review this RFP for instructions on how to respond and for the applicable contractual terms.

2. Questions and Requests for Amendment to RFP. If a Contractor (i) has questions about the RFP, (ii) finds discrepancies, omissions or ambiguities in the RFP, or (iii) believes any term or condition of the RFP is unreasonable, Contractor should request an amendment to the RFP. The request should reference the RFP section at issue and include any specific language that Contractor recommends using.

All requests for amendment must be submitted in writing (via the 1Coud Procurement System) and, unless otherwise specified in the RFP, be received by the Purchasing Analyst (Analyst) at least ten (10) calendar days before the Response Due Date. Questions and requests for amendments directed to the Analyst or to any other Buyer personnel shall not constitute a formal protest of the RFP. Failure to request an interpretation or change will be considered evidence that Contractor understands and agrees to the provisions of the RFP.

The posting of a written amendment is the only official method by which interpretations, clarifications, changes or additional information will be given by Buyer prior to the opening of Responses. Any other interpretation, clarification, change or information will have no legal effect.

Buyer reserves the right to amend, cancel or reissue the RFP at its discretion. Buyer reserves the right to request or obtain additional information about any and all Statement of Qualifications submitted in response to RFP. They may also issue addenda to this RFP which will be sent to each Supplier who received this RFP. This includes the right to change the Response Due Date and the Contract award date. Notice of all amendments and cancellations will be posted on Buyer's website (please contact the Analyst if you are uncertain of the website address or if you experience problems accessing it). Contractor is responsible for monitoring this website for new or changing information.

3. Terms of Agreement. After award to the successful Contractor, Buyer and Contractor will promptly enter into a written agreement (the "Contract") incorporating the terms of the RFP, the successful Response, and other terms and conditions as may be agreed to between the parties. To the extent the Response contains exceptions to or modifications of the RFP, such exceptions or modifications are stricken unless Buyer affirmatively accepts the exceptions or modifications in the Contract. The Contract will be substantially in the form set forth in an attachment to the RFP. Buyer will not be obligated to pay Contractor for the RFP services until the Contract is signed by both parties. Buyer retains the right to reject all bids and/or amend its notice of award at any time prior to the full execution of the Contract.

If the successful Contractor fails to perform the Services as agreed, Buyer reserves the right to (i) issue a new solicitation for the Services; (ii) reopen the RFP for the purpose of awarding a second contract to another Contractor in accordance with the criteria and processes set forth herein; and/or (iii) take such other actions permitted by law.

- **4. Public Meetings and Special Accommodations.** Any meetings of the RFP evaluation committee (i.e., the Jacksonville Procurement Awards Committee or Technical Review Committee) shall be noticed on Buyer's website and shall comply with Florida's Open Meetings Laws. Please contact the Analyst if you are uncertain of Buyer's website address or if you experience problems accessing it. Persons requiring a special accommodation because of a disability should contact the Analystidentified in the Overview Section at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting.
- **5. Cost of Developing RFP Response.** All costs related to the preparation of RFP Responses and any related activities are the sole responsibility of Contractor. Buyer assumes no liability for any costs incurred by Contractors throughout the entire selection process.
- **6. Response Ownership.** All Responses, including attachments, supplementary materials, addenda, etc., shall become property of Buyer and shall not be returned to Contractor. Buyer will have the right to use any and all ideas or adaptation of ideas presented in any Response. Acceptance or rejection of a Response shall not affect this right.
- **7. Public Records Law; Process For Protecting Trade Secrets and Other Information.** Article 1, Section 24, Florida Constitution, guarantees every person access to all public records, and Section 119.011, Florida Statutes, provides a broad definition of public records. As such, all responses to the RFP are public records unless exempt by law. If Contractor considers any portion of its Response to be exempt from disclosure under Florida law, Contractor must provide Buyer with a separate redacted copy of the Response and briefly describe in writing the grounds for claiming exemption from the public records law, including the specific statutory citation. Contractor shall be responsible for defending its determination that the redacted portions of its Response are confidential, trade secret or otherwise not subject to disclosure. Further, Contractor shall protect, defend, and indemnify Buyer for any and all claims arising from or relating to Contractor's determination that the redacted portions of its Response are confidential, trade secret or otherwise not subject to disclosure. If Contractor fails to submit a Redacted Copy with its Response, Buyer is authorized to produce the entire Response in answer to a public records request.

In accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, the Contractor shall:

- (a) Keep and maintain public records required by Buyer to perform the services; and
- (b)Upon request from Buyer's custodian of public records, provide Buyer with a copy of the requested records or allow records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided for in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law; and
- (c)Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Contract term and following completion of this Contract if Contractor does not transfer the records to Buyer; and
- (d)Upon completion of this Contract, transfer to Buyer at no cost all public records in possession of Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by Buyer to perform the service. If Contractor transfers all public records to Buyer upon completion of this Contract, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of this Contract, Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to Buyer upon request from Buyer's custodian of public records in a format that is compatible with Buyer's information technology systems.

The above requirements apply to a "Contractor" as defined in Section, 119.0701, Florida Statutes.

IF CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE BUYER'S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (904) 255-7674; REQUEST@COJ.NET; BUYER OF JACKSONVILLE, PUBLIC RECORDS REQUEST, 214 N. HOGAN STREET, SUITE 1180, JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32202.

- **8.** Multiple Responses from Same Contractor; No Collusion. More than one Response from an individual firm, partnership, corporation or association under the same or different names is not permitted. Reasonable grounds for believing that a Contractor is involved in more than one Response for the same work will be cause for rejection of all Responses in which such Contractor is believed to be involved. Any or all Responses will be rejected if there is reason to believe that collusion exists between Contractors. Responses in which the prices obviously are unbalanced will be grounds for rejection.
- **9. Convicted Vendor List.** A person or affiliate placed on the State of Florida convicted vendor list pursuant to Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, following a conviction for a public entity crime may not do any of the following for a period of 36 months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list:

submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity;

submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work;

submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity;

be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and

transact business with any public entity in excess of the Category Two threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes.

10. Discriminatory Vendor List. An entity or affiliate placed on the State of Florida discriminatory vendor list pursuant to Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, may not:

submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity;

submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work;

submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity;

be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, sub-contractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; or

transact business with any public entity.

11. Contractor Representations. In submitting a Response, Contractor understands, represents, and acknowledges the following (if Contractor cannot so certify to any of following, Contractor shall submit with its Response a written explanation of why it cannot do so).

Contractor currently has no delinquent obligations to the Buyer of Jacksonville or any of its independent agencies.

The Response is submitted in good faith and without any prior or future consultation or agreement with any other respondent or potential respondent;

To the best of the knowledge of the person signing the Response, neither the Contractor, its affiliates, subsidiaries, owners, partners, principals or officers:

is currently under investigation by any governmental authority for conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding on any public contract;

is currently under suspension or debarment by any governmental authority in the United States;

has within the preceding three years been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against it, or is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged, in connection with (i) obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a federal, state, or local government transaction or public contract; (ii) violation of federal or state antitrust statutes; or (iii) commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; or

has within the preceding three-year period had one or more federal, state, or local government contracts terminated for cause or default.

Contractor is not listed on either the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List. Pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the submission of a false certification may subject the company to civil penalties, attorney's fees, and/or costs. [This certification applies to contracts of \$1,000,000 or more. A list of the companies can be found as a link to "PFIA Quarterly Reports" at www.sbafla.com/fsb/]

Contractor has read and understands the RFP terms and conditions, and the Response is submitted in conformance with those terms and conditions.

All representations made by Contractor to Buyer in connection with the RFP have been made after a diligent inquiry of its employees and agents responsible for preparing, approving, or submitting the Response.

Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Buyer and its employees against any cost, damage, or expense which may be incurred or be caused by any error in the Response.

All information provided by, and representations made by, Contractor are material and important and may be relied upon by Buyer in awarding the Contract.

- 12. Provision of Services. Contractor shall provide Buyer with all of the services and deliverables described in the RFP, the Response and the resulting Contract (collectively, the "Services"). If any services, functions or responsibilities are not specifically described in the RFP, the Response or the resulting Contract but are necessary for the proper performance and provision of the Services, they shall be deemed to be implied by and included within the scope of the Services to the same extent and in the same manner as if specifically described herein.
- 13. Relationship of the Parties. In performance of the Services, Contractor shall be acting in the capacity of an independent contractor and not as an agent, employee, partner, joint venture or associate of Buyer. Contractor shall be

solely responsible for the labor, supplies, materials, means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures utilized to perform the Services in accordance with the Contract.

- **14. Buyer's Right to Make Changes.** Buyer may unilaterally require, by written order, changes altering, adding to, or deducting from the Services ("Changes"), provided that such Changes are within the general scope of the Contract. Buyer will make an equitable adjustment in the Contract price or delivery date if the Change materially affects the cost or time of performance. Such equitable adjustments require the written consent of Contractor, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Parties will cooperate with each other in good faith in discussing the scope and nature of the Change, the availability of Contractor personnel, the expertise and resources to provide such Change, and the time period in which such Change will be implemented.
- 15. Service Warranties. Contractor warrants that the Services shall be performed and delivered in a professional, first-class manner in accordance with the Contract and the standards prevailing in the industry. Contractor shall also undertake the following actions without additional consideration during the term of the Contract and for one year thereafter: (i) promptly making necessary revisions or corrections to resolve any errors and omissions on the part of Contractor; and (ii) conferring with Buyer for the purpose of interpreting any of the Services or information furnished. Acceptance of the Services by Buyer shall not relieve Contractor of these responsibilities. The warranties and covenants in this paragraph will extend to all subcontractors as well.

The foregoing warranties and covenants shall not apply (i) with respect to any portions of the Service that have been produced by anyone other than Contractor or its subcontractors; (ii) to any modifications made by anyone other than Contractor or its subcontractors or without Contractor's specific prior written consent; or (iii) to any use of the Service in a manner or for any purpose other than those contemplated in the Contract. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY STATED IN THE CONTRACT, THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES REGARDING MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. CONTRACTOR'S WARRANTIES EXTEND SOLELY TO BUYER.

- **16. Buyer Will Assist Contractor.** At Contractor's request, Buyer will provide reasonable assistance and cooperation to Contractor, including the supply of any data and information necessary for Contractor to provide the Services. Buyer will also designate a Contract Manager who will, on behalf of Buyer, work with Contractor and administer the Contract in accordance with its terms.
- **17. Location Requirements for Services.** Unless otherwise stated in the RFP or the Response, the majority of the Services shall be performed within Duval County, Florida and no Services will be performed outside of the United States. These restrictions may be modified in writing if Buyer determines, in its sole discretion, that the restrictions impose an undue burden on Contractor's ability to perform the Services as contemplated in the Contract.
- **18.** Use of Subcontractors; Flow-Down Provisions. Except to the extent the use of subcontractors is disclosed in the Response or consented to in writing by Buyer, Contractor shall not be allowed to subcontract or assign any of its duties and obligations hereunder. In all cases, Contractor will be responsible for the acts or omissions of its subcontractors. Contractor will ensure that all relevant contractual obligations will flow down to the subcontractors and will be incorporated into the subcontracts (including the obligations relating to insurance, indemnification, delays, intellectual property rights, public records, non-discrimination, audits, security, location of services, termination, transition assistance, warranties, and the manner in which the Services are to be performed).

19. Meetings and Reports. Contractor must attend all meetings and public hearings relative to the Services where its presence is determined to be necessary and requested by Buyer and Contractor can reasonably schedule its appearance. Unless otherwise agreed, Contractor shall provide a monthly report summarizing Contractor's performance. Contractor shall provide other periodic reports respecting the Services as Buyer reasonably requests.

20. Ownership of Works.

(a)The term "Work" shall mean each deliverable, drawing, design, specification, rendering, notebook, tracing, photograph, reference book, equipment, expendable equipment and material, negative report finding, recommendation, data and memorandum of every description, shared with or delivered to Buyer pursuant to the Contract.

(b)With the exception of Contractor's pre-existing intellectual capital and third-party intellectual capital as described in Section below, Buyer shall own all right, title and interest, including ownership of copyright (limited to the extent permitted by the terms of any governing licenses), in and to each Work including, but not limited to, software, source code, reports, deliverable, or work product developed by Contractor specifically for Buyer in connection with the Contract, and derivative works relating to the foregoing. The use of these Works in any manner by Buyer shall not support any claim by Contractor for additional compensation.

(c)Each Work, and any portion thereof, shall be a "work made for hire" for Buyer pursuant to federal copyright laws. Any software, report, deliverable, or work product as used in connection with the Work, but previously developed by Contractor specifically for other customers of Contractor or for the purpose of providing substantially similar services to other Contractor customers, generally shall not be considered "work made for hire", so long as the foregoing are not first conceived or reduced to practice as part of the Work. To the extent any of the Works are not deemed works made for hire by operation of law, Contractor hereby irrevocably assigns, transfers, and conveys to Buyer, or its designee, without further consideration all of its right, title and interest in such Work, including all rights of patent, copyright, trade secret, trademark or other proprietary rights in such materials. Except as provided in the foregoing sentences, Contractor acknowledges that Buyer shall have the right to obtain and hold in its own name any intellectual property right in and to the Work. Contractor agrees to execute any documents or take any other actions as may reasonably be necessary, or as Buyer may reasonably request, to perfect or evidence Buyer's ownership of the Work.

21. Intellectual Property.

(a)Contractor grants to Buyer an irrevocable, perpetual, royalty free and fully paid-up right to use (and such right includes, without limitation, a right to copy, modify and create derivative works from the subject matter of the grant and the right to sublicense all, or any portion of, the foregoing rights to an affiliate or a third party who provides service to Buyer. Contractor's intellectual property (including, without limitation, all trade secrets, patents, copyright and knowhow) that is contained or embedded in, required for the use of, that was used in the production of or is required for the reproduction, modification, maintenance, servicing, improvement or continued operation of any applicable unit of Work.

(b)If the Work contains, has embedded in, or requires for the use of, any third party intellectual property, or if the third party intellectual property is required for the reproduction, modification, maintenance, servicing, improvement or continued operation of the Work, Contractor shall secure for Buyer an irrevocable, perpetual, royalty free and fully paid-up right to use all third party intellectual property. Contractor shall secure such right at its expense and prior to incorporating any third party intellectual property (including, without limitation, all trade secrets, patents, copyright and

know-how) into any Work, including, without limitation, all drawings or data provided under the Contract, and such right must include, without limitation, a right to copy, modify and create derivative works from the subject matter of the grant of the right and a right to sublicense all or any portion of the foregoing rights to an affiliate or a third party service provider. This subparagraph does not apply to standard office software (e.g., Microsoft Office).

(c)Should Buyer, or any third party obtaining such Work through Buyer, use the Work or any part thereof for any purpose other than that which is specified in the Contract, it shall be at Buyer's and such third party's sole risk.

- **22. Software Development Processes and Standards.** To the extent any software is developed, modified, or otherwise procured under the Contract, Contractor will use commercially-accepted software development and documentation processes and standards.
- **23.** Limitation of Warranty for Buyer-Furnished Software. In lieu of any other warranty expressed or implied herein, Buyer warrants that any programming aids and software packages supplied for Contractor use as Buyer-furnished property shall be suitable for their intended use on the system(s) for which designed. In the case of programming aids and software packages acquired by Buyer from a commercial source, such warranty is limited to that set forth in the contractual document covering the product(s). Should Buyer furnish Contractor with any programming aids or software packages that are found not to be suitable for their intended use on the system(s) for which designed, Contractor shall notify Buyer and supply documentation regarding any defects and their effect on progress on the Contract. Buyer will consider equitably adjusting the delivery performance dates or compensation, or both, and any other contractual provision affected by the Buyer-furnished property in accordance with the procedures provided for in Section 3.3 above ("Buyer's Right to Make Changes").
- **24.** Loss of Data. If any Buyer data or record is lost or corrupted due to the negligence of Contractor or any of its subcontractors or agents, Contractor shall be responsible for correcting and recreating all production, test, acceptance and training files or databases affected which are used in the provision of services, at no additional cost to the Buyer in the manner and on the schedule set by Buyer. This remedy shall be in addition to any other remedy Buyer may be entitled to by law or the Contract.
- **25. Purchase Orders.** If the Contract requires a Service to be ordered by Buyer via purchase order, Contractor shall not deliver or furnish the Service until a Buyer transmits a purchase order. All purchase orders shall bear the Contract or solicitation number, shall be placed by Buyer directly with Contractor, and shall be deemed to incorporate by reference the Contract. Any discrepancy between the Contract terms and the terms stated on the Contractor's order form, confirmation, or acknowledgement shall be resolved in favor of terms most favorable to Buyer.
- **26. Best Pricing for Comparable Services to Other Government Entities.** Compensation for the Services shall be as set forth in the Contract. During the Contract term, if Contractor offers better pricing to other government entities for substantially the same or a smaller quantity of Services upon the same or similar terms of the Contract ("Better Pricing"), then the price under the Contract shall be immediately reduced to the better price. Buyer may require Contractor to certify on an annual basis that Better Pricing (as defined above) does not exist.
- 27. Invoicing and Payment.

(a)Unless otherwise specified in the RFP, payment to Contractor for Services shall be made on a monthly basis for the Services provided by Contractor for the preceding month. Invoices shall contain the Contract number, purchase order number if applicable, and the appropriate vendor identification number. Buyer may require any other information from Contractor that Buyer deems necessary to verify its obligation to pay under the Contract. Payments will be made to Contractor approximately thirty (30) days after receipt and acceptance of a proper invoice. Buyer does not pay service charges, interest or late fees unless required by law.

(b)To the extent Contractor's fees include reimbursement for travel or travel-related expenses, such travel and travel-related expenses shall be subject to and governed by the provisions and limitations of Chapter 106, Part 7, Jacksonville Ordinance Code.

(c)Buyer's obligations to make payment are contingent upon availability of lawfully appropriated funds for the Services.

28. Taxes. Buyer is generally exempt from any taxes imposed by the State of Florida or the Federal Government. Exemption certificates will be provided upon request. Contractor shall not include any state, local and federal taxes in any prices quoted to Buyer.

29. Right of Setoff. Buyer may, in addition to other remedies available at law or equity and upon notice to Contractor, retain such monies from amounts due Contractor as may be necessary to satisfy any claim for damages, penalties, costs and the like asserted in good faith by Buyer (or any other local government entity or authority located in Duval County, Florida) against Contractor.

30. Retention of Records / Audits.

(a)Contractor must establish and maintain books, records, contracts, sub-contracts, papers, financial records, supporting documents, statistical records and all other documents pertaining to the Contract (collectively, the "Records"), in whatsoever form or format (including electronic storage media) is reasonable, safe and sufficient.

(b)Contractor must retain all Records for a minimum period of three (3) years after the final payment is made under the Contract. If an audit has been initiated and audit findings have not been resolved at the end of the three (3) year period, the Records shall be retained until resolution of the audit findings or any litigation which may be based on the terms of the Contract, at no additional cost to Buyer. Records shall be retained for longer periods when the retention period exceeds the time frames required by law or ordinance.

(c)At all reasonable times for as long as the Records are maintained, Contractor must allow persons duly authorized by Buyer (including Buyer's auditor and inspector general offices), and to have full access to and the right to examine, copy or audit any of the Records, regardless of the form in which kept. Contractor will not charge Buyer for any setup, supervision or space in connection with the examination and audit. Photocopying charges will not exceed the actual and reasonable cost of the copies to Contractor, and Buyer shall be permitted to bring its photocopying equipment if Buyer so desires.

(d)Contractor must comply with and cooperate in any audits or reports requested by Buyer and must ensure that all

related party transactions are disclosed to the auditor.

(e)Contractor must permit Buyer to interview any of Contractor's employees, subcontractors and subcontractor employees to assure Buyer of the satisfactory performance of the terms and conditions of the Contract. Unless the parties agree otherwise or Buyer is willing to pay for the employee's reasonable travel expenses, the interviews will be conducted at the employee's primary place of work. Contractor will not charge Buyer for any employee time unless the interview time for that employee exceeds eight (8) hours in a calendar year.

(f)Following any audit or review, if performance of Contractor is, in the opinion of Buyer, deficient, Buyer will deliver to Contractor a written report of the deficiencies and request for development by Contractor of a corrective action plan. Contractor hereby agrees to prepare and submit, to Buyer, said corrective plan within ten (10) days of receiving Buyer's written report. Thereafter, Contractor must correct all deficiencies in the corrective action plan within a reasonable time after Buyer's receipt of the corrective action plan.

(g)All reports and other information provided by Contractor pursuant to this Section shall be submitted under penalties of perjury, under Section 837.06, Florida Statutes.

(h)Contractor must include the aforementioned audit, inspection, investigation and record-keeping requirements in all subcontracts and Contract assignments.

(i)Contractor agrees to reimburse Buyer for the reasonable costs of investigation incurred by Buyer for audits, inspections and investigations that uncover a material violation of the Contract. Such costs shall include the salaries of investigators, including overtime, travel and lodging expenses, and expert witness and documentary fees. Contractor shall not be responsible for any costs of investigations that do not uncover a material violation of the Contract.

- **31. Buyer's Right to Suspend Work.** Buyer may in its sole discretion suspend any or all activities under the Contract by providing a written notice to Contractor at least five (5) days in advance that outlines the particulars of suspension. Within ninety (90) days of providing such notice, or within any longer period agreed to by Contractor, Buyer shall either (1) authorize the resumption of work, at which time activity shall resume, or (2) terminate the Contract in accordance with the applicable termination provisions. Suspension of work shall not entitle Contractor to any additional compensation. The parties will reasonably amend any schedules relating to performance of the Services to reflect the suspension of work hereunder. Contractor shall not be entitled to receive compensation for any work it performs after being excused from providing it hereunder.
- **32. Buyer's Right to Terminate for Convenience.** Buyer reserves the right to terminate the Contract at any time and for any reason by giving written notice to Contractor. If the Contract is terminated for convenience as provided herein, Buyer will be relieved of all further obligations other than payment for that amount of Services actually performed to the date of termination. Access to any and all work papers will be provided to the District after the termination of the Contract. The parties understand and agree that Contractor shall not have a reciprocal right to terminate the Contract for convenience; it being understood that Buyer's payment for Services forms the consideration for Contractor not having this right. In the event of Buyer's termination of the Contract, Buyer (in its sole discretion) may also require Contractor to provide the Transition Services as set forth below.

33. Buyer's Remedies Upon Contractor Default. Any one or more of the following events, if not cured within ten (10) calendar days after Contractor's receipt of written notice thereof, shall constitute an "Event of Default" on the part of Contractor: (1) Contractor fails to perform the Services within the time specified in the Contract or any extension, (2) Contractor fails to maintain adequate progress, thus endangering performance of the Contract, (3) Contractor fails to honor any other material term of the Contract, or (4) Contractor fails to abide by any statutory, regulatory, or licensing requirement. Buyer may extend the 10-day cure period in its discretion.

In addition, the following shall constitute an immediate Event of Default with no right cure: (i) Contractor is found to have made a false representation or certification in its Response, or (ii) Contractor has been placed on the list maintained under Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, of companies with activities in Sudan or in Iran Petroleum Energy Sector.

Upon an "Event of Default" on the part of Contractor, Buyer will be entitled to terminate the Contract and pursue such other remedies available at law or equity, including the recovery of any procurement costs and delay damages. The rights and remedies available to Buyer under the Contract are distinct, separate and cumulative remedies, and no one of them, whether or not exercised by a party, shall be deemed to be in exclusion of any other.

If, after termination, it is determined that Contractor was not in default, or that the default was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience.

- **34. Contractor Remedies Upon Buyer Default.** Buyer shall be in default if Buyer fails to honor any material term of the Contract, and such failure is not cured within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt of written notice thereof from Contractor. In the event of Buyer's default, Contractor will be entitled to terminate the Contract and pursue such other remedies available at law or equity as it deems appropriate. Except as expressly provided elsewhere in the Contract, Contractor will not be entitled to recover any lost profits or consequential damages. The rights and remedies available to Contractor under the Contract are distinct, separate and cumulative remedies, and no one of them shall be deemed to be in exclusion of any other.
- **35. Transition Services.** At any time prior to the date the Contract expires or terminates for any reason (the "Termination Date"), Buyer may request Contractor to provide reasonable transition assistance services ("Transition Assistance"). Contractor shall provide such Transition Assistance until such time as Buyer notifies Contractor that Buyer no longer requires such Transition Assistance, but in no event for more than 180 days following the Termination Date.

Transition Assistance shall mean any services, functions or responsibilities that are ordinarily or customarily provided to a purchaser to ensure that the services provided to that purchaser by a contractor are fully transitioned in a smooth and efficient manner to a new service provider (either Buyer itself or a third party contractor). Transition Assistance includes the development and implementation of a detailed transition plan. To the extent that Transition Assistance will involve third parties hired by Buyer, those third parties shall cooperate with Contractor in its provision of Transition Assistance and sign any reasonable non-disclosure agreements required by Contractor.

Transition Assistance rendered before the Termination Date shall be provided at no additional cost to Buyer. Transition Assistance rendered after the Termination Date shall be provided at the rates negotiated by the parties prior to the rendering of such service, which rates shall not exceed the standard market rates that Contractor charges to government entities for comparable services; provided however, that if Buyer terminates the Contract because of a breach by

Contractor, then (i) the Transition Assistance shall be provided at no cost to Buyer, and (ii) Buyer will be entitled to any other remedies available to it under law. Contractor may withhold Transition Assistance after the Termination Date if Buyer does not provide reasonable assurance that the charges for such Transition Assistance will be paid to Contractor in accordance with the invoicing and payment provisions of the Contract.

- **36. No Waiver.** The delay or failure by a party to exercise or enforce any of its rights under the Contract shall not constitute or be deemed a waiver of that party's right thereafter to enforce those rights, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, Buyer's payment for the Services shall not release Contractor of its obligations under the Contract and shall not be deemed a waiver of Buyer's right to insist upon strict performance hereof.
- **37. Qualification of Contractor Employees, Subcontractors, and Agents.** All Contractor employees, subcontractors and agents performing work under the Contract shall be properly trained and qualified. Upon request, Contractor shall furnish a copy of technical certification or other proof of qualification. All employees, subcontractors and agents performing work under the Contract must comply with all reasonable administrative requirements of Buyer and with all controlling laws and regulations relevant to the services they are providing under the Contract. Buyer may conduct, and Contractor shall cooperate in, a security background check or other assessment of any employee, subcontractor or agent furnished by Contractor. Buyer may refuse access to, or require replacement of, any personnel for reasonable cause.

Contractor shall take all actions necessary to ensure that Contractor's employees, subcontractors and agents are not considered employees of Buyer. Such actions include, but are not limited to, ensuring that Contractor's employees, subcontractors and agents receive payment and any legally mandated insurance (e.g., workers' compensation and unemployment compensation) from an employer other than Buyer.

As a condition to providing services to Buyer, Contractor (and any subcontractor) will enroll and participate in the federal E-Verify Program within thirty days of the effective date of the Contract. Proof of enrollment and participation will be made available to Buyer upon request.

- **38. Security Procedures.** Contractor and its employees, subcontractors and agents shall comply fully with all generally applicable security procedures of the United States, the State of Florida and Buyer in performance of the Contract. Buyer agrees that any security procedures imposed by Buyer specifically for the Contract will be reasonable and will not impose any unreasonable costs or hardships.
- **39. Restrictions on the Use or Disclosure of Buyer's Information.** Contractor shall not use, copy or disclose to third parties, except in connection with performing the Services, any information obtained by Contractor or its agents, subcontractors or employees in the course of performing the Services, including, but not limited to, security procedures, business operations information, or commercial proprietary information in the possession of Buyer. At Buyer's request, all information furnished by Buyer will be returned to Buyer upon completion of the Services. Contractor shall not be required to keep confidential any information that has already been made publicly available through no fault of Contractor or that Contractor developed independently without relying on Buyer's information. To ensure confidentiality, Contractor shall take appropriate steps as to its employees, agents, and subcontractors, including the insertion of these restrictions in any subcontract agreement. The warranties of this paragraph shall survive the Contract.
- **40. Protection of Contractor's Trade Secrets and Other Confidential Information.** All documents received by Buyer in connection with this Agreement are subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (the "Florida Public Records

- Law"). Any specific information that Contractor claims to be a trade secret or otherwise exempt from the Florida Public Records Law must be clearly identified as such by Contractor on all copies furnished to Buyer. Buyer agrees to notify Contractor of any third-party request to view such information, but it is Contractor's obligation to obtain a court order enjoining disclosure. If Contractor fails to obtain a court order enjoining disclosure within five (5) business days of Contractor's receiving notice of the request, Buyer may release the requested information. Such release shall be deemed for purposes of the Contract to be made with Contractor's consent and will not be deemed to be a violation of law, including but not limited to laws concerning trade secrets, copy right or other intellectual property.
- **41. Assignment.** Each party binds itself and its respective successors and assigns in all respects to all of the terms, conditions, covenants and provisions of the Contract. Contractor shall not sell, assign or transfer any of its rights (including rights to payment), duties or obligations under the Contract without the prior written consent of Buyer. In the event of any assignment, Contractor shall remain liable for performance of the Contract unless Buyer expressly waives such liability. Buyer may assign the Contract with prior written notice to Contractor of its intent to do so. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating any personal liability on the part of any officer, employee or agent of Buyer.
- **42. Notice and Approval of Changes in Ownership.** Because the award of the Contract may have been predicated upon Contractor's ownership structure, Contractor agrees that any transfer of a substantial interest in Contractor by any of its owners shall require Buyer's prior written approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or unreasonably delayed. By execution of the Contract, Contractor represents that it has no knowledge of any intent to transfer a substantial interest in Contractor. A substantial interest shall mean at least 25% of the voting shares in Contractor. This section shall not apply to (i) transfers occurring upon the incapacitation or death of an owner; (ii) transfers associated with an initial public offering on the NYSE or NASDAQ markets; or (iii) transfers to a company whose stock is publicly traded on the NYSE or NASDAQ markets.
- **43. Assignment of Antitrust Claims.** Contractor and Buyer recognize that in actual economic practice, overcharges resulting from antitrust violations are in fact usually borne by Buyer. Therefore, Contractor hereby assigns to Buyer any and all claims under the antitrust laws of Florida or the United States for overcharges of goods, materials or services purchased in connection with the Contract.
- **44. Equal Employment Opportunity.** The Equal Opportunity clause in Title 41, Part 60-1.4 of the Code of Federal Regulations (Paragraphs 1 through 7 of President's Executive Order 11246), the provisions of the Equal Opportunity for Individuals with Disabilities Act in 42 U.S.C. Section 12112, the Listing of Employment Openings for Veterans Clause in Title 41, Part 50-260.2 of the Code of Federal Regulations and the Disabled Veterans and Veterans of the Vietnam era Clause in Title 41, Part 60-250.5 of the Code of Federal Regulations, are incorporated herein by reference if and to the extent applicable. If Contractor is exempt from any of the above cited terms, written evidence of such exempt status must be provided to Buyer.
- **45. Other Non-Discrimination Provisions.** As required by Section 126.404, Jacksonville Ordinance Code, Contractor represents that it has adopted and will maintain a policy of non-discrimination against employees or applicants for employment on account of race, religion, sex, color, national origin, age or handicap, in all areas of employment relations, throughout the term of the Contract. Contractor agrees that, on written request, it will permit reasonable access to its records of employment, employment advertisement, application forms and other pertinent data and records, by the Executive Director of the Community Relations Commission, or successor agency or commission, for the purpose of investigation to ascertain compliance with the non-discrimination provisions of the Contract; provided however, that Contractor shall not be required to produce, for inspection, records covering periods of time more than one (1) year prior to the effective date of the Contract. Contractor agrees that, if any of the products or Services to be provided pursuant to the Contract are to be provided by a subcontractor, the provisions of this Section shall be

incorporated into and become a part of the subcontract.

Different from contract terms

- **46. Prompt Payment to Subcontractors and Suppliers.** The following is required by Chapter 126, Part 6, Jacksonville Ordinance Code; provided however, if Contractor does not use JSEB subcontractors, as identified below, this section shall not apply:
- (a) Generally. When Contractor receives payment from Buyer for labor, services or materials furnished by subcontractors and suppliers hired by Contractor, Contractor shall remit payment due (less proper retainage) to those subcontractors and suppliers within fifteen (15) calendar days after Contractor's receipt of payment from Buyer. Nothing herein shall prohibit Contractor from disputing, pursuant to the terms hereof, all or any portion of a payment alleged to be due to its subcontractors and suppliers. In the event of such dispute, Contractor may dispute the disputed portion of any such payment only after Contractor has provided notice to the Buyer and to the subcontractor or supplier whose payment is in dispute, which notice shall: (i) be in writing; (ii) state the amount in dispute; (iii) specifically describe the actions required to cure the dispute; and (iv) be delivered to Buyer and said subcontractor or supplier within ten (10) calendar days after Contractor's receipt of payment from Buyer. Contractor shall pay all undisputed amounts due within the time limits imposed by this Section.
- (b) Jacksonville Small and Emerging Business Enterprise and Minority Business Enterprise Participation. Notwithstanding Chapter 126, Part 6 of the Jacksonville Ordinance Code, Contractor shall pay all contracts awarded with certified Jacksonville Small and Emerging Business Enterprises ("JSEB") as defined therein, their pro rata share of their earned portion of the progress payments made by Buyer under the Contract within seven (7) business days after Contractor's receipt of payment from Buyer (less proper retainage). The pro-rata share shall be based on all work completed, materials and equipment furnished, or services performed by the certified JSEB at the time of payment. As a condition precedent to progress and final payments to Contractor, Contractor shall provide to Buyer, with its requisition for payment, documentation that sufficiently demonstrates that Contractor has made proper payments to its certified JSEB's from all prior payments Contractor has received from Buyer. Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold payments to certified JSEB's if such payments have been made to Contractor. If Contractor withholds payment to its certified JSEB's, which payment has been made by Buyer to Contractor, Contractor shall return said payment to Buyer. Contractor shall provide notice to Buyer and to the certified JSEB's whose payment is in dispute, which notice shall: (i) be in writing; (ii) state the amount in dispute; (iii) specifically describe the actions required to cure the dispute; and (iv) be delivered to Buyer and said JSEB's within five (5) calendar days after Contractor's receipt of payment from Buyer. Contractor shall pay all undisputed amounts due within the time limits imposed in this Section. The failure to pay undisputed amounts to the JSEB's within seven (7) business days shall be a breach of the Contract, compensable by one per-cent (1%) of the outstanding invoice being withheld by Buyer, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages to compensate for the additional contract administration by Buyer.
- (c) Third Party Liability. The Prompt Payment requirements hereunder shall in no way create any contractual relationship or obligation between Buyer and any subcontractor, supplier, JSEB or any third party or create any Buyer liability for Contractor's failure to make timely payments hereunder. However, Contractor's failure to comply with the Prompt Payment requirements shall constitute a material breach of Contractor's contractual obligations to Buyer. As a result of said breach, Buyer, without waiving any other available remedy it may have against Contractor, may: (i) issue joint checks; and (ii) charge Contractor a 0.2% daily late payment charge or the charges specified in said Chapter 126 of the Jacksonville Ordinance Code for JSEB's and in Chapter 218, Florida Statutes, for non-JSEB's, whichever is greater.

- **47. Conflicts of Interest.** Contractor acknowledges that Section 126.112 of the Jacksonville Ordinance Code requires that a public official who has a financial interest in a bid or contract make a disclosure at the time that the bid or contract is submitted or at the time that the public official acquires a financial interest in the bid or contract, including but not limited to the public official's name, public office or position held, bid or proposal number, and the position or relationship of the public official with the bidder or contractor.
- **48. Contingent Fees Prohibited.** Contractor warrants that it has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for Contractor, to solicit or secure the Contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual or firm, other than a bona- fide employee working solely for Contractor, any fee, commission, percentage, gift or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of the Contract. For the breach or violation of these provisions, Buyer shall have the right to terminate the Contract without liability and, at its discretion, to deduct from the contract price, or otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, gift or consideration.
- **49. Truth in Negotiation Certificate.** The execution of the Contract by Contractor shall be deemed to be a simultaneous execution of a Truth-In-Negotiation Certificate, whereby Contractor states that the wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation hereunder are accurate, complete and current at the time of contracting. Further Contractor agrees that the compensation hereunder shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums where Buyer determines the contract price was increased due to inaccurate, incomplete or non-current wage rates and other factual unit costs, provided that any and all such adjustments shall be made within one (1) year following the completion date of the Contract.
- **50.** Compliance with Applicable Laws. Contractor (and any subcontractors) must comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations as the same exist and as may be amended from time to time, including, but not limited to:

Chapter 119, Florida Statutes (the Florida Public Records Law);

Section 286.011, Florida Statutes (the Florida Sunshine Law);

Chapter 602, Jacksonville Ordinance Code (the Jacksonville Ethics Code);

Chapter 126, Jacksonville Ordinance Code (the Jacksonville Purchasing Code); and

All licensing and certification requirements applicable to performing the Services.

51. Cooperative Purchasing. Pursuant to their own governing laws, and subject to the agreement of Contractor, other entities may be permitted to make purchases at the terms and conditions contained herein. These purchases are independent of the agreement between Buyer and Contractor, and Buyer shall not be a party to such transactions.

- **52.** Warranty of Ability to Perform. Contractor warrants that (i) it is ready, willing and able to perform its obligations under the Contract, and (ii) to the best of Contractor's knowledge, there are no pending or threatened actions, proceedings, investigations or any other legal or financial conditions that would in any way prohibit, restrain, or diminish Contractor's ability to satisfy its Contract obligations. Contractor shall immediately notify Buyer in writing if its ability to perform is compromised in any manner during the term of the Contract.
- **53.** Warranty of Authority to Sign Contract. Each person signing the Contract warrants that he or she is duly authorized to do so and to bind the respective party to the Contract.
- **54.** Governing State Law/Severability/Venue/Waiver of Jury Trial. The rights, obligations and remedies of the parties as specified under the Contract shall be interpreted and governed in all aspects by the laws of the State of Florida. Should any provision of the Contract be determined by the courts to be illegal, unenforceable or in conflict with any applicable law, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be impaired. Venue for litigation of the Contract shall be exclusively in courts of competent jurisdiction located in Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida. The parties waive any and all rights to a jury trial with respect to disputes arising under the Contract.
- **55. Construction.** Both parties acknowledge that they have had the opportunity to provide meaningful input into the terms and conditions contained in the Contract. Therefore, any doubtful or ambiguous provisions contained herein shall not be construed against the party who physically prepared the Contract. Article headings appearing herein are inserted for convenience or reference only and shall in no way be construed to be interpretations of text.
- **56.** Office of Inspector General. The Buyer of Jacksonville has established an Office of Inspector General, Section 602.301, Part 3, Chapter 602, Ordinance Code, as may be amended. The Inspector General's authority includes but is not limited to the power to: review past, present, and proposed Buyer contracts, transactions, accounts, and records; require the production of records; and, audit, investigate, monitor, and inspect the activities of the Buyer, its officials, employees, contractors, their subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors, and other parties doing business with the Buyer and/or receiving Buyer funds in order to ensure compliance with contract requirements and detect corruption and fraud. Failure to cooperate with the Inspector General or interfering with or impeding any investigation shall be a violation of Section 602.309, Ordinance Code.
- **57. Ethics Provisions for Vendors/Suppliers.** The bidder, by affixing its signature to the proposal form, and/or the acceptance of a purchase order, represents that it has reviewed the provisions of the Jacksonville Ethics Code contained in chapter 602, Jacksonville Ordinance Code and the provisions of the Purchasing code contained in chapter 126, Jacksonville Ordinance Code and has read and will comply with the Mandatory Ethics Training for Suppliers located on the Procurement Website.
- **58. Employment Eligibility.** Pursuant to the provisions of section 448.095, Florida Statutes, the parties agree to the following. For purpose of this section, the term "contract" includes this Agreement and any contract between the Contractor and any of its subcontractors:
- (a)The Contractor and any of its subcontractors shall register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. The Contractor and any of its subcontractors may not enter into a contract unless each party to the contract registers with and uses the E-Verify system.

*1	RFP Indemnification and Insurance Requirements
2.5	Indemnification and Insurance Requirements (Preliminary Response Stage)
	□ a. Acknowledge
	Select one of the following:-
	f)The Contractor is liable for any additional costs incurred by the Buyer as a result of the termination of a contract.
	aone contract for at least 1 year after the date on which the rigidential was terminated.
	e)If the Buyer terminates the Agreement with Contractor under paragraph (c), the Contractor may not be awarded a ublic contract for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement was terminated.
	hallenge a termination under paragraph (c) no later than 20 calendar days after the date on which the contract was erminated.
	d)The Buyer, Contractor, or any of Contractor's subcontractors may file an action with a circuit county court to
	onsidered as such.
	A contract terminated under subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. shall not be a breach of Contract and may not be
	therwise complied with this subsection, the Buyer shall promptly notify the Contractor and order the Contractor to mediately terminate the contract with the sub-contractor.
	.If the Buyer has a good faith belief that a subcontractor knowingly violated this subsection, but the Contractor
	ne person or entity.
	c)1. The Buyer, the Contractor, or any of the Contractor's subcontractors who has a good faith belief that a person of ntity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated s.448.09 (1), Florida Statues, shall terminate the contract with
	A contract terminated under subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. shall not a breach of contract and may not be onsidered as such.
	nmediately terminate the contract with the subcontractor.
	.If the Buyer has a good faith belief that a subcontractor knowingly violated this subsection, but the contractor therwise complied with this subsection, then the Buyer shall promptly notify the Contractor and order the Contractor to
	b)1.If the Contractor enters into a contract with a subcontractor, the subcontractor must provide the Contractor with ar ffidavit stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien.

APPROVED

By Kevin at 7:58 am, Aug 28, 2025

Restaurant Operators St. Johns River Park Friendship Fountain INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Without limiting its liability under this Contract, Provider shall at all times during the term of this Contract procure prior to commencement of work and maintain at its sole expense during the life of this Contract (and Provider shall require its, subcontractors, laborers, materialmen and suppliers to provide, as applicable), insurance of the types and limits not less than amounts stated below:

Insurance Coverages

Schedule	Limits	
Worker's Compensation	Florida Statut	tory Coverage
Employer's Liability	\$ 1,000,000	Each Accident
	\$ 1,000,000	Disease Policy Limit
	\$ 1,000,000	Each Employee/Disease

This insurance shall cover the Provider (and, to the extent they are not otherwise insured, its subcontractors) for those sources of liability which would be covered by the latest edition of the standard Workers' Compensation policy, as filed for use in the State of Florida by the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI), without any restrictive endorsements other than the Florida Employers Liability Coverage Endorsement (NCCI Form WC 09 03), those which are required by the State of Florida, or any restrictive NCCI endorsements which, under an NCCI filing, must be attached to the policy (i.e., mandatory endorsements). In addition to coverage for the Florida Workers' Compensation Act, where appropriate, coverage is to be included for the Federal Employers' Liability Act, USL&H and Jones, and any other applicable federal or state law.

Commercial General Liability	\$2,000,000	General Aggregate
•	\$2,000,000	Products & Comp. Ops. Agg.
	\$1,000,000	Personal/Advertising Injury
	\$1,000,000	Each Occurrence
	\$ 50,000	Fire Damage
	\$ 5,000	Medical Expenses

Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the most recent version of the standard Commercial General Liability Form (ISO Form CG 00 01) as filed for use in the State of Florida without any restrictive endorsements other than those reasonably required by the City's Office of Insurance and Risk Management. An Excess Liability policy or Umbrella policy can be used to satisfy the above limits.

Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000	Combined Single Limit
(Coverage for all automobiles, owned.	hired or non-owned used in perfo	rmance of the Services)

Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the most recent version of the standard Business Auto Coverage Form (ISO Form CA0001) as filed for use in the State of Florida without any restrictive endorsements other than those which are required by the State of Florida, or equivalent manuscript form, must be attached to the policy equivalent endorsement as filed with ISO (i.e., mandatory endorsement).

Liquor or Host Liquor Liability \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence (Liquor or Host Liquor Liability to the extent liquor is being sold, served or consumed.)

Pollution Legal Liability

\$1,000,000

per Loss/ Agg.

Any entity hired to perform services as a part of this contract that require disposal of any hazardous material off the job site shall maintain Pollution Legal Liability with coverage for bodily injury and property damage for losses that arise from the facility that is accepting the waste under this contract.

Umbrella Liability

\$5,000,000 Each Occurrence/Agg.

The Umbrella Liability policy shall be in excess of the above limits without any gap. The Umbrella coverage will follow-form the underlying coverage and provide on an Occurrence basis all coverages listed above and shall be included in the Umbrella policy.

Additional Insurance Provisions

- A. Additional Insured: All insurance except Worker's Compensation shall be endorsed to name the City of Jacksonville and City's members, officials, officers, employees and agents as Additional Insured. Additional Insured for General Liability shall be in a form no more restrictive than CG2010 and CG2037, Automobile Liability CA2048.
- B. Waiver of Subrogation. All required insurance policies shall be endorsed to provide for a waiver of underwriter's rights of subrogation in favor of the City of Jacksonville and its members, officials, officers employees and agents.
- C. Provider's Insurance Primary. The insurance provided by the Provider shall apply on a primary basis to, and shall not require contribution from, any other insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City or any City members, officials, officers, employees and agents.
- D. Deductible or Self-Insured Retention Provisions. All deductibles and self-insured retentions associated with coverages required for compliance with this Contract shall remain the sole and exclusive responsibility of the named insured Provider. Under no circumstances will the City of Jacksonville and its members, officers, directors, employees, representatives, and agents be responsible for paying any deductible or self-insured retentions related to this Contract.
- E. Contractor's Insurance Additional Remedy. Compliance with the insurance requirements of this Contract shall not limit the liability of the Provider or its Subcontractors, employees or agents to the City or others. Any remedy provided to City or City's members, officials, officers, employees, or agents shall be in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedy available under this Contract or otherwise.
- F. Waiver/Estoppel. Neither approval by City nor failure to disapprove the insurance furnished by Provider shall relieve Provider of Provider's full responsibility to provide insurance as required under this Contract.
- G. Certificates of Insurance. Provider shall provide the City Certificates of Insurance at contract execution, that shows the corresponding City Contract Number in the Description, if known, Additional Insureds as provided above and waivers of subrogation. The certificates of insurance shall be mailed to the City of Jacksonville (Attention: Chief of Risk Management), 117 W. Duval Street, Suite 335, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.
- H. Carrier Qualifications. The above insurance shall be written by an insurer holding a current certificate of authority pursuant to chapter 624, Florida State or a company that is declared as an approved Surplus Lines carrier under Chapter 626 Florida Statutes. Such Insurance shall be written by an insurer with an A.M. Best Rating of A-VII or better.

- I. Notice. The Provider shall provide an endorsement issued by the insurer to provide the City thirty (30) days prior written notice of any change in the above insurance coverage limits or cancellation, including expiration or non-renewal. If such endorsement is not available then the Tenant, as applicable, shall provide said thirty (30) days written notice of any change in the above coverages or limits, coverage being suspended, voided, cancelled, including expiration or non-renewal.
- J. Survival. Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, the liabilities of the Provider under this Contract shall survive and not be terminated, reduced or otherwise limited by any expiration or termination of insurance coverage.
- K. Additional Insurance. Depending upon the nature of any aspect of any project and its accompanying exposures and liabilities, the City may reasonably require additional insurance coverages in amounts responsive to those liabilities, which may or may not require that the City also be named as an additional insured.
- L. Special Provisions: Prior to executing this Agreement, Provider shall present this Contract and the Insurance Requirements and Indemnification to its Insurance Agent affirming: 1) That the Agent has personally reviewed the insurance requirements of the Contract Documents, and (2)That the Agent is capable (has proper market access) to provide the coverages and limits of liability required on behalf of Provider.

	Select one of the following:-
a. Acknowledge	a. Acknowledge

2.6 Sample Services Contract (Preliminary Response Stage)

*1. Please review and acknowledge the attached sample Professional Services Contract.

SAMPLE

SERVICES CONTRACT BETWEEN [THE CITY OF JACKSONVILLE] AND

INSERT CORPORATE NAME OF CONTRACTOR FOR INSERT SUMMARY OF SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED

THIS CONTRACT	made and entered into this	day of	, 201(the "Effective Date").
by and between the CIT's	OF JACKSONVILLE (the	"CITY"), a municipal	corporation existing under the
	of the State of Florida, an		(the "CONTRACTOR"), a
corporation	authorized to transact by	usinoss in Florida and	with its principal offices at

_(the "RFP") for WHEREAS, the CITY (as the "Buyer") issued a Request for Proposal No.____ certain services described in the RFP (the "Services"); and

NOW THEREPORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained below, the parties agree as follows:

- Performance of Services. The Services will be performed by CONTRACTOR as specified in the RFF and the Response
 - Compensation. CONTRACTOR will be paid by the CITY for the Services (as follows:

 _] or [as specified on the Price Sheets ottached as Exhibit _____.
- Maximum Indebtedness. As required by Section 106.431, Ordinance Code, the CITY's maximum indebtedness, for all products and services under this Contract shall be a fixed monetary amount not-to-exceed
- Taxes. The initial term of this Contract shall commence on the Effective Date and shall expire on unless sooner terminated by either party in accordance with the terms of the RFP. This Contract may be renewed for up to _____additional one (1) year periods by (i) the CITY, it its sole discretion, upon written notice to CONTRACTOR at least sixty (60) days gains to end of the then-current term, or (ii) upon the mutual agreement of the parties
- Contract Documents. This Contract consists of the following documents which are hereby incorporated as if fully set forth herein and which, in case of conflict, shall have priority in the order listed:
 This document, as modified by any subsequent signed amendments.

 - Any amendments to the RFP
 - Specific Information Regarding The RFP (Section 1 of the RFP)
 - Description of Services and Deliverables (Section 4 of the RFF)
 General Instructions to Respondents (Section 2 of the RFF)

 - General Contract Conditions (Section 3 of the RFF)

 - Any Purchase Order under the Contract
 The Response, provided that any terms in the Response that are prohibited under the RFF shall not be included in this Contract.
- Notices. All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be delivered by certified
 mail, return receipt requested, or by other delivery with receipt to the following:

As to the CITY:	
As to the CONTRACTOR:	

- Contract Managers. Each Porty will designate a Contract Manager during the term of this Contract • Commer Austrages. Each Party will disignate a Contract Manager during the term of this Contract whose responsibility shall be to overset the Party's performance of its duties and obligations pursuant to the terms of this Contract. As of the Effective Date, CITY'S Contract Manager is [Insert Name and Address], and the CONTRACTOR'S Contract Manager is [Insert Name and Address]. Each Party shall provide prompt written notice to the other Party of any changes to the Party's Contract Manager or his or her contact information, provided, such changes shall not be deemed Contract amendments and may be provided viscensis.
- Entire Agreement. This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto for 6. <u>Section Agreement</u>. The Contract constitutes the enter agreement between the parties hereto for the Services to be performed and furnished by the CONTRACTOR. No statement, representation, writing, understanding, agreement, course of action or course of conduct, made by either party or any representative of either party, which is not expressed herein shall be binding. CONTRACTOR may not undistrailly modify the terms of this Contract by officing additional terms to materials delivered to the CITY (e.g., "shrink wrap" terms accompanying or affixed to a deliverable) or by including such terms on a purchase order or psyment document. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it is entering into this Contract for its own purposes and not for the breath of matchied even. any third party.
- Assendments. All changes to, additions to, modifications of, or amendment to this Contract, or my of the term of the terms, provisions and conditions hereof, shall be binding only when in writing and signed by the orized officer, agent or representative of each of the particularities.
- Countseparts. This Contract, and all amendments thereto, may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of such counterparts together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally. Signature page follows immediately.]

IN WITINESS WHERBOP, the parties have executed this Contract as of the day and year first above written.		
ATTEST:	CITY OF JACKSONVILLE	
Ву	86	_
James McCain Corporation Secretary	Donna Dorgan Mayor	
	,	
In accordance with the Ordinance Code, of unexpended, unencumbered, and un-impounded be agreement, and that provision has been made for the	slance in the appropriation suffic	sent to cover the foregoing
Director of Fina CITY Contract:		
Form Approved:		
Office of General Coursel		
ATTEST:	INSERT NAME OF CONTRACT	TOR.
Ву	Br.	
Signature	Siscetus	_
Type/Print Name	Type/Print Name	-
Title	Title.	-
Attachments:		
File Name or URL	Type	Description

Select one of the following:-

Sample Professional

a. Acknowledge

Services C

2.7 Evaluation Criteria - Preliminary Response Stage (Preliminary Response Stage)

File

Section Maximum Score: 100

*1. **COMPETENCE.** List previous food and beverage operations that the operations team has been involved with within the last 10 years. Identify, specifically, the key personnel who will be part of the operation and describe the work they will perform. Provide resumes of Owner, General Manager, Chef and other principal staff showing years of experience in food and beverage operations. **(40 points maximum score; scores shall reflect the quality of establishments cited)**

Owner(s) (15 points) - The Team must include and identify the Owner(s) who will personally work on this project and who meets the following qualifications:

a. Who has a minimum of five (5) years of experience as an owner of a casual dining establishment or a higher-tier food and beverage concept.

b. Who has a minimum of ten (10) years of experience as an owner, manager and/or operator of a casual dining establishment or a higher-tier food and beverage concept.
Also to include:
c. A resume that details professional food and beverage service-related experience, accomplishments and education for the principal(s) manager(s), and chef if already selected. If not integrated as part of the resume, an attachment should be added that includes background and experience hiring, training, coaching and managing food service personnel.
d. General description of the proposed concept to include type of food, service style, ambiance and vibe, target market, and proposed hours of operation.
e. General narrative of the proposed menu for the restaurant. Item specifics is not required but welcome.
f. Articulate and respond to three challenges inherent in operating a restaurant and how these challenges can be met and overcome.
General Manager (10 points) - The Team must include a General Manager who will personally work on this project and who meets the following qualifications:
a. Who has a minimum of two (3) years of experience as a manager of a casual dining establishment or a higher-tier food and beverage concept.
b. Who has an additional minimum of five (5) years of experience in a casual dining establishment or a higher-tier food and beverage concept.
Chef (10 points) - The Team must include an Executive or Head Chef who will personally work on this project and who meets the following qualifications:
a. Who has a minimum of two (2) years of experience as a head chef, in charge of the entire kitchen, of a casual dining establishment or a higher-tier food and beverage concept.

	b. Who has an additional minimum of three (3) years of management experience in back of the house operations of a casual dining establishment or a higher-tier food and beverage concept.
	Assembled Team (5 points) – Please list any other team members (including but not limited to a beverage director, pastry chef, sous chef) that will be part of the operating group not listed above, if any.
	Maximum Score: 40
	Select one of the following:-
	☐ a. Acknowledge
*2.	1. 2. RECENT, CURRENT AND PROJECTED EXPERIENCE AND WORKLOAD. Provide the number and size of food and beverage location currently in operation. Discuss ability to operate multiple units. (20 points maximum score)
	Maximum Score: 20
	Select one of the following:-
	☐ a. Acknowledge
*3.	3. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY. Describe the form of business, i.e., proprietorship, partnership, corporation; years in business; changes in ownership; bank reference(s); past, present, pending and/or threatened legal proceedings within any forum; and any other information the Operator may wish to supply to demonstrate and be scored on financial responsibility. Proposer must demonstrate financial capability sufficient for the Evaluation Committee to conclude that the Proposer has the capital and operational financial resources to perform the required Food and Beverage Operator services as generally described herein.
	• Proposers must include a letter from their primary business bank confirming capability of required investment
	•€€€€. Proposers must include the most recent three years' profit and loss statements for the restaurant or resort identified for meeting the minimum qualifications in paragraph c for Food & Beverage (F&B) Experience – Owner and Operating Partner , as described above which will be sealed from public record
	(20 points maximum score)
	 Provide one (1) copy of your firm's most recent financial statement submitted in a sealed envelope. Each envelope should be clearly marked as "Financial Statement - Confidential". The sealed financials received will remain sealed to the public but will be reviewed by the

evaluation team for a determination. "Pursuant to Section 119.071(1)(c), Florida Statutes, the document contained herein is exempt from the mandatory disclosure requirements of the Florida Public records Law. Accordingly it is not Subject to Public Inspection." Include your firm's name and the number of the project as shown above. In certain cases (roads and public works projects) may not be subject to the Public Records Law.

:4.	Maximum Score: 20 Select one of the following:- □ a. Acknowledge 4. PROXIMITY TO THE PROJECT. Document the location of each location currently in operation and corporate headquarters, if one exists. (15 points maximum score)
:5.	Maximum Score: 15 Select one of the following:- □ a. Acknowledge 5. PAST AND PRESENT DEMONSTRATED COMMITMENT TO SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESSES AND CONTRIBUTIONS TOWARD A DIVERSE MARKETPLACE. Responses to this evaluation criterion should include, without limitation, statements that document the Operator's: (i) commitment to members and/or employees that make up its firm; (ii) commitment to diversity within its community and beyond; and (iii) commitment to and/or utilization of small and emerging businesses as vendors. (5 points maximum score)
	Maximum Score: 5 Select one of the following:- □ a. Acknowledge

Attach the financial statements separately.

3 Lines

3.1 Line Information

Line	Target Quantity	UOM	Response Quantity	Response Price	Line Amount	Promised Date
1-Please insert	150,001	Squar				
\$1.00		e				
		Foot				

3.2 Line Details

3.2.1 Line 1 Please insert \$1.00

Category Name 971.35 Land, Rental

or Lease

Item Revision

Allow Alternate Lines No

Requested Date Location 117 West Duval Street

Suite 310

JACKSONVILLE, FL

32202

Start Price (USD)

Attachments

File Name or URL	Type	Description
Revised Memo Procurement SJRP	File	

4 Contract Terms

Contract Terms and Conditions

A. Solicitation Overview

A.1. Scope of Work

The Downtown Investment Authority of the City of Jacksonville, Florida is currently accepting bids to obtain source(s) of supply for the item(s)/service(s) as outlined in the bid documents provided. The purpose of this bid invitation is to obtain information about your firm and its ability to provide these item(s)/service(s) and to obtain pricing commitments for Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for Restaurant Operators in St.Johns River Park as listed in the bid documents.

A.2. Award

Award will be made to the highest ranked, responsive, responsible bidder.

A.3. Term of Agreement

The term of the agreement is a One-time Purchase and will commence upon execution of the PO or contract and will continue until completion and acceptance of the stated Scope of Work as specified.

A.4. Quantities

Quantities indicated are fixed.

B. Insurance Requirements

B.1. Insurance Requirements

Indemnification

Applicant and its subcontractors (the "Indemnifying Party") shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the City of Jacksonville and their respective members, officers, officials, employees and agents (collectively the "Indemnified Parties") from and against, without limitation, any and all claims, suits, actions, losses, damages, injuries, liabilities, fines, penalties, costs and expenses of whatsoever kind or nature, which may be incurred by, charged to or recovered from any of the foregoing Indemnified Parties for:

- a. General Tort Liability, for any negligent act, error or omission, recklessness, or intentionally wrongful conduct on the part of the Indemnifying Party that causes injury (whether mental or corporeal) to persons (including death) or damage to property, whether arising out of or incidental to the Indemnifying Party's performance of the Agreement, operations, services or work performed hereunder; and
- b. Environmental Liability, to the extent this Agreement contemplates environmental exposures, arising from or in connection with any environmental, health and safety liabilities, claims, citations, clean-up, or damages whether arising out of or relating to the operation or other activities performed in connection with the Agreement; and
- c. Intellectual Property Liability, to the extent this Agreement contemplates intellectual property exposures, arising directly or indirectly out of any allegation that the Services provided under this Agreement (the "Service(s)"), any product generated by the Services, or any part of the Services as contemplated in this Agreement, constitutes an infringement of any copyright, patent, trade secret or any other intellectual property right. If in any suit or proceeding, the Services, or any product generated by the Services, is held to constitute an infringement and its use is permanently enjoined, the Indemnifying Party shall, immediately, make every reasonable effort to secure within sixty (60) days, for the Indemnified Parties, a license, authorizing the continued use of the Service or product. If the Indemnifying Party fails to secure such a license for the Indemnified Parties, then the Indemnifying Party shall replace the Service or product with a non-infringing Service or product or modify such Service or product in a way satisfactory to the City, so that the Service or product is non-infringing.

If an Indemnified Party exercises its right under this Agreement, the Indemnified Party will (1) provide reasonable notice to the Indemnifying Party of the applicable claim or liability, and (2) allow Indemnifying Party, at its own expense, to participate in the litigation of such claim or liability to protect its interests. The scope and terms of the indemnity obligations herein described are separate and apart from, and shall not be limited by, any insurance provided pursuant to the Agreement or otherwise. Such terms of indemnity shall survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement.

In the event that any portion of the scope or terms of this indemnity is in derogation of Section 725.06 or 725.08 of the Florida Statutes, all other terms of this indemnity shall remain in full force and effect. Further, any term which offends Section 725.06 or 725.08 of the Florida Statutes will be modified to comply with said statutes.

Without limiting its liability under this Contract, Provider shall at all times during the term of this Contract procure prior to commencement of work and maintain at its sole expense during the life of this Contract (and Provider shall require its, subcontractors, laborers, materialmen and suppliers to provide, as applicable), insurance of the types and limits not less than amounts stated below:

Insurance Coverages

Schedule Limits

Workers Compensation Florida Statutory Coverage

\$100,000	Each Accident
\$500,000	Disease Policy Limit
\$100,000	Each Employee /Disease

This insurance shall cover the Applicant (and, to the extent they are not otherwise insured, its subcontractors) for those sources of liability which would be covered by the latest edition of the standard Workers' Compensation policy, as filed for use in the State of Florida by the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI), without any restrictive endorsements other than the Florida Employers Liability Coverage Endorsement (NCCI Form WC 09 03), those which are required by the State of Florida, or any restrictive NCCI endorsements which, under an NCCI filing, must be attached to the policy (i.e., mandatory endorsements). In addition to coverage for the Florida Workers' Compensation Act, where appropriate, coverage is to be included for the Federal Employers' Liability Act, USL&H and Jones, and any other applicable federal or state law.

Commercial General Liability	\$2,000,000	General Aggregate
	\$2,000,000	Products & Comp. Ops. Agg.
	\$1,000,000	Personal / Advertising Injury
	\$1,000,000	Each Occurrence
	\$50,000	Damage to Rental Premises
	\$5,000	Medical Expense

Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the most recent version of the standard Commercial General Liability Form (ISO Form CG 00 01) as filed for use in the State of Florida without any restrictive endorsements other than those reasonably required by the City's Office of Insurance and Risk Management. An Excess Liability policy or Umbrella policy can be used to satisfy the above limits.

Automobile Liability	\$1,000,000	Combine Single Limi
----------------------	-------------	---------------------

(Coverage for all automobiles, owned, hired or non-owned used in performance of the Contract)

Such insurance shall be no more restrictive than that provided by the most recent version of the standard Business Auto Coverage Form (ISO Form CA0001) as filed for use in the State of Florida without any restrictive endorsements other than those which are required by the State of Florida, or equivalent manuscript form, must be attached to the policy equivalent endorsement as filed with ISO (i.e., mandatory endorsement).

Liquor or Host Liquor Liability \$1,000,000 Each Occurrence

(Liquor or Host Liquor Liability to the extent liquor is being sold, served or consumed.)

Professional Liability	\$1,000,000	per Claim and Aggregate	e
------------------------	-------------	-------------------------	---

(Including Medical Malpractice when applicable)

Any entity hired to perform professional services as a part of this contract shall maintain professional liability coverage on an Occurrence Form or a Claims Made Form with a retroactive date to at least the first date of this Contract and with a three year reporting option beyond the annual expiration date of the policy.

Sexual Molestation	\$1,000,000	Per Claim
	\$2,000,000	Aggregate

(Only if program includes direct supervision of children, special needs, and/or senior citizens)

Sexual Molestation Liability coverage will be provided on an Occurrence Form or a Claims Made Form with a retroactive date to at least the first date of this Contract. If provided on a Claim Made Form, the coverages must respond to all claims reported within three years following the period for which coverage is required and which would have been covered had the coverage been on an occurrence basis.

Accident Medical, \$15,000 Per Participant

Dismemberment and Death

Crime – Employee Fidelity \$1,000,000 Per Loss

(Including theft of client property without computer data exclusion)

Builders Risk/Installation 100% of Completed Value of the Project **Floater**

Such insurance shall be on a form acceptable to the CITY's Office of Insurance and Risk Management. The Builder's Risk policy shall include the SPECIAL FORM/ALL RISK COVERAGES. The Builder's Risk and/or Installation policy shall not be subject to a coinsurance clause. A maximum \$10,000 deductible for other than windstorm and hail. For windstorm and hail coverage, the maximum deductible applicable shall be 2% of the completed value of the project. Named insureds shall be: CONTRACTOR, the CITY, and respective members, officials, employees and agents, the ENGINEER, and the PROGRAM MANAGEMENT FIRM(S) (when program management services are provided). The City of Jacksonville, its members, officials, officers, employees, and agents are to be named as a loss payee.

Pollution Liability \$1,000,000 per Loss

\$2,000,000 Annual Aggregate

Any entity hired to perform services as part of this contract for environmental or pollution related concerns shall maintain Contractor's Pollution Liability coverage. Such Coverage will include bodily injury, sickness, and disease, mental anguish or shock sustained by any person, including death; property damage including physical injury to destruction of tangible property including resulting loss of use thereof, cleanup costs, and the loss of use of tangible property that has not been physically injured or destroyed; defense including costs charges and expenses incurred in the investigation, adjustment or defense of claims for such compensatory damages; coverage for losses caused by pollution conditions that arises from the operations of the contractor including transportation.

Pollution Legal Liability \$1,000,000 per Loss \$2,000,000 Aggregate

Any entity hired to perform services as a part of this contract that require disposal of any hazardous material off the job site shall maintain Pollution Legal Liability with coverage for bodily injury and property damage for losses that arise from the facility that is accepting the waste under this contract.

Watercraft Liability \$1,000,000 Per Occurrence

(to the extent that watercraft is utilized in the services of this contract)

Umbrella Liability \$5,000,000 Each Occurrence/Agg.

The Umbrella Liability policy shall be in excess of the above limits without any gap. The Umbrella coverage will follow-form the underlying coverages and provides on an Occurrence basis all coverages listed above and shall be included in the Umbrella policy.

Such insurance shall be on a form acceptable to the City of Jacksonville and shall cover, at a minimum, the following:

- a. Cyber Extortion
- b. Data Loss and System Damage Liability (when applicable)
- c. Security Liability
- d. Privacy Liability
- e. Privacy/Security Breach Response Coverage, including Notification Expenses

Such Cyber Liability coverage must be provided on an Occurrence Form or, if on a Claims Made Form, the retroactive date must be no later than the first date of this Contract and such claimsmade coverage must respond to all claims reported within three years following the period for which coverage is required and which would have been covered had the coverage been on an occurrence basis.

The Cyber Liability coverage may be included as part of the Professional Liability coverage required above.

Additional Insurance Provisions

- a. Certificates of Insurance. Applicant shall deliver the City of Jacksonville Certificates of Insurance that shows the corresponding City Contract or Bid Number in the Description, Additional Insureds, Waivers of Subrogation and & statement as provided below. The certificates of insurance shall be mailed to the City of Jacksonville (Attention: Chief of Risk Management), 117 W. Duval Street, Suite 335, Jacksonville, Florida 32202.
- b. Additional Insured: All insurance except Worker's Compensation, shall be endorsed to name the City of Jacksonville and their respective members, officers, officials, employees and agents as Additional Insured. Additional Insured for General Liability shall be in a form no more restrictive than CG2010 and, if products and completed operations is required, CG2037, Automobile Liability CA2048.
- c. Waiver of Subrogation. All required insurance policies shall be endorsed to provide for a waiver of underwriter's rights of subrogation in favor of the City of Jacksonville and their respective members, officers, officials, employees, and agents.
- d. Carrier Qualifications. The above insurance shall be written by an insurer holding a current certificate of authority pursuant to chapter 624, Florida State or a company that is declared as an approved Surplus Lines carrier under Chapter 626 Florida Statutes. Such Insurance shall be written by an insurer with an A.M. Best Rating of A- VII or better.
- e. Applicant Insurance Primary. The insurance provided by the Applicant shall apply on a primary basis to, and shall not require contribution from, any other insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City of Jacksonville and their respective members, officers, officials, employees, and agents.
- f. Deductible or Self-Insured Retention Provisions. All deductibles and self-insured retentions associated with coverages required for compliance with this Agreement shall remain the sole and exclusive responsibility of the named insured Applicant. Under no circumstances will the City of Jacksonville and their respective members, officers, officials, employees and agents be responsible for paying any deductible or self-insured retention related to this Agreement.
- g. Agreement Insurance Additional Remedy. Compliance with the insurance requirements of this Agreement shall not limit the liability of the Applicant or its Subcontractors, employees or agents to the City of Jacksonville and their respective members, officers, officials, employees and agents shall be in addition to and not in lieu of any other remedy available under this Agreement or otherwise.

- h. Waiver / Estoppel. Neither approval by City of Jacksonville nor failure to disapprove the insurance furnished by Applicant shall relieve Applicant of Applicant's full responsibility to provide insurance as required under this Contract / Agreement / Lease.
- i. Notice. The relieve Applicant shall provide an endorsement issued by the insurer to provide the City thirty (30) days prior written notice of any change in the above insurance coverage limits or cancellation, including expiration or non-renewal. If such endorsement is not provided, the Contractor, as applicable, shall provide said a thirty (30) days written notice of any change in the above coverages or limits, coverage being suspended, voided, cancelled, including expiration or non-renewal.
- j. Survival. Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, the liabilities of the Applicant under this Agreement shall survive and not be terminated, reduced, or otherwise limited by any expiration or termination of insurance coverage.
- k. Additional Insurance. Depending upon the nature of any aspect of any project and its accompanying exposures and liabilities, the City of Jacksonville may reasonably require additional insurance coverages in amounts responsive to those liabilities, which may or may not require that the City of Jacksonville and their respective members, officers, officials, employees and agents also be named as an additional insured.
- 1. Special Provision: Prior to executing this Agreement, Applicant shall present this Agreement and insurance requirements to its Insurance Agent Affirming: (1) That the Agent has personally reviewed the insurance requirements of the Contract Documents, and (2) That the Agent is capable (has proper market access) to provide the coverages and limits of liability required on behalf of Agreement.

Bonds and Other Performance Security

Design-Builder shall not perform or commence any construction services for a Project until the following performance bond and labor and material payment bond or other performance security have been delivered to Owner: Bonds - In accordance with the provisions of Section 255.05, Florida Statutes, Design-Builder shall provide to Owner, on forms furnished by Owner, a 100% Performance Bond and a 100% Labor and Material Payment Bond for each Project performed under this Agreement, each in an amount not less than the GMP as defined in Article 6 and inclusive of Design-Builder's fees. No qualification or modifications to the Bond forms are permitted.

To be acceptable to Owner as Surety for Performance Bonds and Labor and Material Payment Bonds, a Surety Company shall comply with the following provisions:

- 1. The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority, issued by the State of Florida, Department of Insurance, authorizing it to write surety bonds in the State of Florida.
- 2. The Surety Company shall have a currently valid Certificate of Authority issued by the United States Department of Treasury under Sections 9304 to 9308 of Title 31 of the United States Code.
- 3. The Surety Company shall be in full compliance with the provisions of the Florida Insurance Code.
- 4. The Surety Company shall have at least twice the minimum surplus and capital required by the Florida Insurance Code during the life of this agreement.
 - a. If the Contract Award Amount exceeds \$500,000, the Surety Company shall also comply with the following provisions:
 - b. The Surety Company shall have at least the following minimum ratings in the latest issue of A.M. Best's Key Rating Guide.

CONTRACT AMOUNT	RATING	RATING
\$500,000 TO \$1,000,000	A-	CLASS IV

\$1,000,000 TO \$2,500,000	A-	CLASS V
\$2,500,000 TO \$5,000,000	A-	CLASS VI
\$5,000,000 TO \$10,000,000	A-	CLASS VII
\$10,000,000 TO \$25,000,000	A-	CLASS IXIII
\$25,000,000 TO \$50,000,000	A-	CLASS IX
\$50,000,000 TO \$75,000,000	A-	CLASS X

- 5. The Surety Company shall not expose itself to any loss on any one risk in an amount exceeding ten (10) percent of its surplus to policyholders, provided:
 - a. Any risk or portion of any risk being reinsured shall be deducted in determining the limitation of the risk as prescribed in this section. These minimum requirements shall apply to the reinsuring carrier providing authorization or approval by the State of Florida, Department of Financial Services to conduct business in this state.
 - b. In the case of the surety insurance company, in addition to the deduction for reinsurance, the amount assumed by any co-surety, the value of any security deposited, pledged or held subject to the consent of the surety and for the protection of the surety shall be deducted.

C. Equal Business Opportunity Plan

C.1. Encouragement Plan for Jacksonville Small and Emerging Business Program

It is an official policy of the City of Jacksonville to encourage the maximum participation of **Jacksonville Small Emerging Business (JSEB)** in its contract awards based upon availability. **Under the encouragement plan, vendors are required to make all efforts reasonably necessary to ensure that City certified JSEB have a full and fair opportunity to compete for performance on this project.**

Bidders/Suppliers/Consultants or any entity doing business with the City shall not discriminate on the basis of race, ethnicity, national origin or gender in the award and performance of the work under this contract.

Please use the attached form 1 (Schedule of Participation) to submit JSEB Participation on this Bid. You may contact the Jacksonville Small & Emerging Business Office at (904) 255-8620 to verify the status of a JSEB or visit our web site at www.JSEB.coj.net.

D. General Conditions

D.1. Assignment

The Bidder shall not assign, transfer, convey, sublet, novation, or otherwise dispose of this Agreement, or of any or all of its rights, title, or interests therein, or its power to execute such agreement to any person, firm, or corporation without prior written authorization by the City.

D.2. Audit Provision

A person or entity providing capital improvements, contractual services, supplies, professional design services, or professional services purchased by the City pursuant to a method of purchase, unless otherwise provided herein, shall agree and be deemed to have agreed by virtue of doing business under contract with the City to all access and examination at all reasonable times by the Council Auditor or any duly authorized representative of the Council Auditor to business records directly pertinent to the transaction until the expiration of three years after final payment pursuant to the transaction. No examination shall be conducted until the Council Auditor has made a recommendation to the Council President that the examination should be conducted and until the Council President has approved the conducting of the examination.

D.3. Bid / Surety Requirements

All bids that may require a bid security or surety in the form of a certified check, cashier's check or bid bond in the amount as prescribed in the bid documents must accompany the bid submission prior to the scheduled bid opening. Certified and cashier's checks will be deposited by the City and reimbursement checks will be issued once an award is made. Failure to submit the above information timely will be grounds for rejection of bid.

D.4. Cartage

No charge will be allowed for cartage or packages unless by special agreement.

D.5. Certificate of Insurance

Each supplier shall maintain, for the entire term of this bid, current insurance coverage as stated in the bid documents. All insurance certificates shall list the City of Jacksonville as an additional insured. The awarded vendor will be required to submit a copy of the insurance certificate within ten (10) days from date of receipt of award notice. Bid number should be listed on certificate.

D.6. COJ - Debarment List

In accordance with the City's Procurement Code, the Chief of Procurement and all agencies are advised to cease doing business with disqualified suppliers as they appear on the Disqualified/Probationary Suppliers list located on the <u>Supplier Portal</u>.

D.7. Collusion

THE BIDDER, BY AFFIXING HIS SIGNATURE TO THIS PROPOSAL, AGREES TO THE FOLLOWING: "BIDDER CERTIFIES THAT THIS BID IS MADE WITHOUT ANY PREVIOUS UNDERSTANDING, AGREEMENT OR CONNECTION WITH ANY PERSON, FIRM, OR CORPORATION MAKING A BID FOR THE SAME ITEMS, AND IS IN ALL RESPECTS FAIR, WITHOUT OUTSIDE CONTROL, COLLUSION, FRAUD OR OTHERWISE ILLEGAL ACTION."

D.8. Compliance with Specifications

The bidder, by affixing its signature to the bid form submitted, agrees to provide item(s)/service (s) in accordance with the bid documents provided. Bidder must bid only a single offering for each bid item. Multiple offerings, alternates (unless stated) and or stipulations may be cause for bid rejection. Bidder should bid only on forms provided herein unless otherwise stated. Bid submissions shall be in ink or typewritten. All corrections must be initialed.

D.9. Data Required to be Submitted

Whenever the specifications indicate a product or a particular manufacturer, model, or brand in the absence of any statement to the contrary by the bidder, the bid will be interpreted as for the exact brand, model, or manufacturer specified, together with all accessories, qualities, tolerances, compositions, etc. enumerated in the detailed specifications.

If no particular brand, model or make is specified, and if no data is required to be submitted with this bid, the successful contractor, after award and before manufacturer or shipment, may be required to submit working drawings or detailed descriptive data sufficient to enable the City to judge contractor is in compliance with if each requirement of the specifications.

D.10. Delivery

A packing list shall accompany all shipments, which shall indicate, at a minimum, the following: purchase order number, item number and description, date of shipment, quantity ordered and shipped, unit price, and unit of measure.

D.11. Deviations to Specifications

In addition to the requirements of paragraph five, all deviations from the specifications must be noted in detail by the bidder in writing at the time of the submittal of the formal bid. The absence of a written list of specification deviations at the time of submittal of the bid will hold the bidder strictly accountable to the City to the specifications as written. Any deviation from the specifications as written not previously submitted, as required by the above, will be grounds for rejection of the material and/or equipment when delivered.

D.12. Discounts

ALL DISCOUNTS OTHER THAN PROMPT PAYMENT TO BE INCLUDED IN BID PRICE. PROMPT PAYMENT DISCOUNTS OF LESS THAN THIRTY (30) DAYS WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED IN DETERMINING LOW BID.

D.13. Electronic Payments

Bidders/Suppliers are encouraged to enroll in the City of Jacksonville's Automated Clearing House ("ACH") electronic payment program. ACH allows for systematic direct payment to suppliers. The ACH enrollment form can be downloaded at www.coj.net under the Online Forms link on the Finance Department page.

D.14. Errors in Bids

Bidders or their authorized representatives are expected to fully inform themselves as to the conditions, requirements, and specifications before submitting bids; failure to do so will be at the bidder's own risk and bidder cannot secure relief on the plea of error. Neither law nor regulations make allowance for errors either of omission or commission on the part of bidders. In case of error in extension of prices in the bid, the unit price will govern.

D.15. Escalation / De-escalation

All pricing submitted shall remain firm for the first year of the initial contract period. After the

first year of the contract term, a supplier may submit in writing a request for price escalation/deescalation for the percentage of change as listed in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) and/or documentation notifying of an industry-wide increase. The City reserves the right to decline any price increase request.

D.16. Ethics Provision for Vendors / Suppliers

The Bidder, by affixing its signature to the proposal form, and/or the acceptance of a purchase order, represents that it has reviewed the provisions of the Jacksonville Ethics Code contained in the Ordinance Code and the provisions of the Purchasing code contained in the Ordinance Code and has read and will comply with the Mandatory Ethics Training for Suppliers located on the Procurement Website.

D.17. Extension

In addition to any renewal options contained herein, the City has the right to extend any award resulting from this Bid for the period of time necessary for the City to release, award, and implement a replacement agreement for the commodities and/or contractual services provided in this Bid. Such extension shall be based upon the same prices, terms, and conditions set forth in this Bid.

D.18. Favored Nation Clause

Based on similar size and quantity, it is understood that the Bidder is providing the City the same or better pricing than other governmental agencies. If during the term of this Agreement, the Bidder offers other governmental agencies better pricing for the same item, the Bidder agrees to offer the City the reduced price.

D.19. Force Majeure, Notice of Delay, and No Damages for Delay

Neither party shall be responsible for delays in performance if the delay was beyond that party's control (or the control of its employees, subcontractors, or agents). Supplier shall notify Buyer in writing of any such delay or potential delay and describe the cause of the delay either (1) within ten (10) calendar days after the cause that creates or will create the delay first arose if Supplier could reasonably foresee that a delay could occur as a result, or (2) if delay is not reasonably foreseeable, within five (5) calendar days after the date Supplier first had reason to believe that a delay could result. Based upon such notice, Buyer will give Supplier a reasonable extension of time to perform; provided, however, that Buyer may elect to terminate the Contract in whole or in part if Buyer determines, in its sole judgment, that such a delay will significantly impair the value of the Contract to Buyer. Providing notice in strict accordance with this paragraph is a condition precedent to such remedy. THE FOREGOING SHALL CONSTITUTE SUPPLIER'S SOLE REMEDY OR EXCUSE WITH RESPECT TO DELAY. No claim for damages, other than for an extension of time, shall be asserted against Buyer. Supplier shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract price or payment of any kind from Buyer for direct, indirect, consequential, impact, or other costs, expenses, or damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency arising because of delay, disruption, interference, or hindrance from any cause whatsoever.

D.20. Guarantee

Contractor will unconditionally guarantee the materials and workmanship on all equipment furnished by it for a period of one year from date of acceptance of the items delivered and installed, unless otherwise specified herein. If, within the guarantee period, any defects or signs of deterioration are noted, which, in the opinion of the City are due to faulty design, installation, workmanship, or materials, upon ratification, the Contractor, at its expense, will repair or adjust the equipment or parts to correct the condition or replace the part or entire unit to the complete satisfaction of the City. Repairs, replacements or adjustments will be made only at such times as will be designated by the City as least detrimental to the operation of City business.

D.21. Invoicing

Invoices will be issued once supplies/services are delivered and/or rendered to the City of Jacksonville or its agencies. At a minimum, invoices must include: purchase order number or contract number; item number and description; date of shipment; quantity ordered and shipped; unit prices; unit of measure; and, extended totals. Payment terms are net thirty (30) days. All original invoices shall be submitted to: City of Jacksonville, General Accounting Division, COJ1CloudInvoices@coj.net. The invoice email subject line MUST BE: inv_300000008806179. Invoices can also be submitted through the 1Cloud Supplier Portal.

D.22. Laws and Regulations

Applicable provisions of all federal, state, county, and local laws, and all ordinances, rules, and regulations shall govern the development, submittal, and evaluation of all Bids received in proposal hereto and shall govern any and all claims and disputes which may arise between the Bidders submitting a proposal hereto and the City by and through its officers, employees, and authorized representatives, or any other persons, natural or otherwise; lack of knowledge by any Bidder shall not constitute a cognizable defense against the legal effect thereof.

D.23. Legal Workforce

Owner shall consider the employment, by Supplier/Contractor, of unauthorized aliens a violation of section 274A (e) of the Immigration and Nationalization Act. Such violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of the Contract upon thirty (30) days' prior written notice of such cancellation, notwithstanding any other provisions to the contrary in the Specifications and other Contract Documents.

Supplier/Contractor shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system, in accordance with the terms governing use of the system, to confirm the employment eligibility of:

- a. all persons employed by the Supplier/Contractor during the term of the Contract to perform employment duties within Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida;
- b. all persons, including subcontractors, assigned by the Supplier/Contractor to perform work pursuant to the Contract with the Owner.

D.24. Licenses Requirement

Bidders / Suppliers responding to a solicitation or by acceptance of a Purchase Order issued by the City of Jacksonville agree to obtain and maintain all applicable local, state and federal licenses required by law.

D.25. Marketing / Advertising

By submitting or being awarded this Bid, Bidder agrees not to use the results as a part of any marketing and/or commercial advertising using the City's name, logos, etc. without the express written consent of the City.

D.26. Nondiscrimination Provisions

As required by the Ordinance Code, Contractor represents that it has adopted and will maintain throughout the term of this contract a policy of nondiscrimination or harassment against any person with regard to race, color, sex (including pregnancy), sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, religion, political affiliation, national origin, disability, age, marital status, veteran status, or any other impermissible factor in recruitment, hiring, compensation, training, placement, promotion, discipline, demotion, transfers, layoff, recall, termination, working conditions and related terms and conditions of employment. Contractor agrees that on written request, it will permit reasonable access to its records of employment, employment advertisement, application forms and other pertinent data and records by the Executive Director of the Community Relations Commission, or successor agency or commission, for the purpose of

investigation to ascertain compliance with the non-discrimination provisions of the Contract; provided however, that Contractor shall not be required to produce for inspection records covering periods of time more than one (1) year prior to the effective date of the Contract. Contractor agrees that if any of the products or Services to be provided pursuant to the Contract are to be provided by a subcontractor, the provisions of this section shall be incorporated into and become a part of the subcontract.

D.27. Office of Inspector General

The City of Jacksonville has established an Office of Inspector General. The Inspector General's authority includes but is not limited to the power to: review past, present, and proposed City contracts, transactions, accounts, and records; require the production of records; and, audit, investigate, monitor, and inspect the activities of the City, its officials, employees, suppliers, their subcontractors and lower tier subcontractors, and other parties doing business with the City and/or receiving City funds in order to ensure compliance with contract requirements and detect corruption and fraud. Failure to cooperate with the Inspector General or interfering with or impeding any investigation shall be a violation of the Ordinance Code.

D.28. Office of the Ombudsman

Failure to comply with the terms and conditions of a contract and/or failure to respond to the Notice of Non-Compliance may result in, but not be limited to, withholding of payment (s), breach of contract, cancellation of contract, filing against performance bonds(s) and disciplinary action, including contractor debarment, in accordance with the Ordinance Code. If a payment or performance dispute arises as to whether the contractor is in non-compliance, the complainant shall engage the Office of the Ombudsman to investigate the matter. During the period of any contest or dispute, the contractor shall otherwise continue to perform under the contract unless instructed otherwise.

D.29. "Or Equal" Interpretation

Even though a particular manufacturer's name or brand is specified, bids will be considered on other brands or on the products of other manufacturers unless noted otherwise. On all such bids, Bidder will clearly indicate the product (brand and model number) on which it is bidding, and will supply a sample or sufficient data in detail to enable an intelligent comparison to be made with the particular brand or manufacture specified. All samples will be submitted in accordance with procedures outlined in the paragraph on **SAMPLES**. Catalog cuts and technical descriptive data will be attached to the original copy of the bid where applicable. Failure to submit the above information may be a sufficient ground for rejection of bid.

D.30. Performance Bond

When applicable, the successful bidder on this bid must furnish a performance bond as indicated in the specifications, made out to the City of Jacksonville, Florida, and prepared on an approved form as security for the faithful performance of its contract within ten (10) days of its notification that its bid has been accepted. The surety thereon must be a surety company authorized and licensed to transact business in the State of Florida. Attorneys in facts who sign bid bonds must file with each bond a certified copy of their power of attorney to sign said bonds. The successful bidder or bidders, upon failure or refusal to furnish within ten (10) days after its notification the required performance bonds, will pay to the City of Jacksonville, as liquidated damages for such failure or refusal, an amount in cash equal to the security deposited with its bid.

D.31. Pickup and Returns

City reserves the right to return an order in whole or in part if the merchandise is not in compliance with the bid specifications. City or its agencies will determine compliance with bid specifications. Pick up and returns will be made within forty-eight (48) hours of notification at no

charge to the City or its agencies.

D.32. Prices

All unit prices shall include freight, delivery, and handling charges to the delivery location as outlined in the bid documents.

D.33. Procurement Division as Agent

When the Procurement Division is acting as an agent for "other public activities" (defined as activities receiving financial support, in part from the City but not under the direct governing jurisdiction of the Consolidated Government), the name of such public activity will be substituted for the word "City" in the foregoing paragraphs Nos. 1 - 52.

D.34. Prohibition Against Considering Social

PROHIBITION AGAINST CONSIDERING SOCIAL, POLITICAL OR IDEOLOGICAL INTERESTS IN GOVERNMENT CONTRACTING

Pursuant to Section 287.05701, Florida Statutes, as amended, Contractor is hereby notified that the City in awarding contracts to vendors may not:

- (1)Request documentation or consider a vendor's social, political, or ideological interests when determining if the vendor is a responsible vendor; and
- (2) Give preference to a vendor based on the vendor's social, political, or ideological interests.

D.35. Prompt Payment to Subcontractors and Suppliers

The following is required by the Ordinance Code; provided however, if Supplier does not use JSEB subcontractors, as identified below, this section shall not apply:

- a. Generally When Supplier receives payment from city for labor, services, or materials furnished by subcontractors and suppliers hired by Supplier, Supplier shall remit payment due (less proper retainage) to those subcontractors and suppliers within fifteen (15) calendar days after Supplier's receipt of payment from city. Nothing herein shall prohibit Supplier from disputing, pursuant to the terms hereof, all or any portion of a payment alleged to be due to its subcontractors and suppliers. In the event of such a dispute, Supplier may withhold the disputed portion of any such payment only after Supplier has provided notice to City and to the subcontractor or supplier whose payment is in dispute, which notice shall: (i) be in writing; (ii) state the amount in dispute; (iii) specifically describe the actions required to cure the dispute; and (iv) be delivered to City and said subcontractor or supplier within ten (10) calendar days after Supplier's receipt of payment from City. Supplier shall pay all undisputed amounts due within the time limits imposed by this section.
- b. Jacksonville Small Business Enterprise (JSEB) and Minority Business Enterprise (MBE)

 Notwithstanding the Ordinance Code, Supplier shall pay all contracts awarded with certified JSEBs and MBEs as defined therein their pro-rata share of their earned portion of the progress payments made by City under the applicable contract within seven (7) business days of Supplier's receipt of payment from City (less proper retainage). The prorata share shall be based on all work completed, materials, and equipment furnished or services performed by the certified JSEB or MBE at the time of payment. As a condition precedent to progress and final payments to Supplier, Supplier shall provide to City, with its requisition for payment, documentation that sufficiently demonstrates that Supplier has made proper payments to its certified JSEB or MBE from all prior payments that Supplier has received from City. Supplier shall not unreasonably withhold payments to certified JSEB or MBE if such payments have been made to the Supplier. If Supplier

withholds payment to its certified JSEBs or MBEs, which payment has been made by City to Supplier, Supplier shall return said payment to City. Supplier shall provide notice to City and to the certified JSEB or MBE whose payment is in dispute, which notice shall: (i) be in writing; (ii) state the amount in dispute; (iii) specifically describe the actions required to cure the dispute; and be delivered to City and said subcontractor or supplier within five (5) calendar days after Supplier's receipt of payment from City. Supplier shall pay all undisputed amounts due within the time limits imposed by this section. The failure to pay undisputed amounts to the JSEB or MBE within seven (7) business days shall be a breach of contract, compensable by 1% of the outstanding invoice's being withheld by the City as liquidated damages. Continued failure to adhere to this clause may be cause for termination.

c. Third-Party Liability – The Prompt Payment requirements hereunder shall, in no way, create any contractual relationship or obligation between City and any subcontractor, supplier, JSEB, MBE, or any third-party or create any city liability for Supplier's failure to make timely payments hereunder. However, Supplier's failure to comply with the Prompt Payment requirements shall constitute a material breach of its contractual obligations to city. As a result of said breach, City, without waiving any other available remedy it may have against Supplier, may: (i) issue joint checks; and (ii) charge Supplier a 0.2% daily interest penalty or the penalties specified in the Ordinance Code for JSEBs or MBEs and in Chapter 218, Florida Statutes, for non-JSEB or non-MBE, whichever is greater.

D.36. Provision for Other Agencies

Each bidder agrees that when submitting its bid, it will make available to all City agencies and departments, bi-City agencies, and in-City fire departments, the bid it submits in accordance with the bid terms and conditions, should any said department or agency wish to buy under this bid proposal.

D.37. Public Entity Crime Information

A person or affiliate who has been placed on the State of Florida convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not: submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; submit a bid on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; submit bids on leases of real property to a public entity; be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; or transact business with any public entity for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.

D.38. Public Records

In accordance with Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, the Contractor shall:

- a. Keep and maintain public records required by City to perform the services; and
- b. Upon request from City's custodian of public records, provide City with a copy of the requested records or allow records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided for in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law; and
- c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Contract term and following completion of this Contract if Contractor does not transfer the records to City; and
- d. Upon completion of this Contract, transfer to City at no cost all public records in possession of Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by City to perform the service. If Contractor transfers all public records to City upon completion of this Contract, Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or

confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of this Contract, Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to City upon request from City's custodian of public records in a format that is compatible with City's information technology systems.

The requirements in this solicitation apply to a "Contractor" as defined in Section, 119.0701 Florida Statues. For the purposes of this solicitation "Supplier" is to be defined the same.

D.39. Purchases by Other Public Agencies / Piggyback

With the consent and agreement of the Bidder, purchases may be made under this solicitation and resulting contract by other governmental agencies, political subdivisions within the State of Florida, or any other public entity. Such purchases shall be governed by the same terms and conditions stated herein. Further, it is understood that each agency will issue its own purchase orders to the Bidder. This agreement in no way restricts or interferes with the right of any other public agency to rebid any or all of these items.

D.40. Question Cutoff

All questions regarding the bid documents, specifications, or pertaining to the Pre-Bid Conference MUST be submitted in writing by clicking on the "Message" tab located on the top right area of the solicitation. Answers to questions received timely will be issued by an addendum. Questions submitted after the cutoff date on the solicitation schedule may not get answered.

D.41. Quotations

No bidder will be allowed to offer more than one price on each item even though he or she may feel that he or she has two or more types or styles that will meet specifications. Bidders must determine for themselves which to offer. IF SAID BIDDER SHOULD SUBMIT MORE THAN ONE PRICE ON ANY ITEM, ALL PRICES FOR THAT ITEM WILL BE REJECTED AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CHIEF OF THE PROCUREMENT DIVISION.

D.42. Report of Unsatisfactory Products and / or Services

A Supplier Performance Report form will be utilized to document unsatisfactory performance during the term of this Bid. The report may become an important part of the Bidder's history. The report and process will assist the City in determining whether there is a continuing pattern of problems which may need to be addressed through termination of contract and/or suspension of the Supplier from future Bidding.

D.43. Reporting

City may request during the term of this Bid, reports, including but not limited to usage, pricing, and delivery. Suppliers will be required to provide reports requested in hard copy and electronic format as required.

D.44. Reservations

City reserves the right to reject any or all bids or any parts thereof and/or to waive information if such action is deemed to be in the best interests of the City.

City reserves the right to cancel any contract, if in its opinion, Contractor fails at any time to perform adequately the stipulations of this invitation to bid, and the general conditions and specifications which are attached and made part of this bid, or in any case of any attempt to willfully impose upon City materials or products or workmanship which is, in the opinion of City,

of an unacceptable quality. Any action taken in pursuance of this latter stipulation will not affect or impair any rights or claim of City to damages for the breach of any covenants of the contract by the Contractor. City also reserves the right to reject the bid of any bidder who has previously failed to perform adequately after having once been awarded a prior bid for furnishing materials similar in nature to those materials mentioned in the bid.

Should the contractor fail to comply with the conditions of this Contract or fail to complete the required work or furnish the required materials within the time stipulated in the Contract, City reserves the right to purchase on the open market or to complete the required work at the expense of Contractor or by recourse to provisions of the faithful performance bond if such bond is required under the conditions of this bid.

Should the Contractor fail to furnish any item or items, or to complete the required work included in this Contract, City reserves the right to withdraw such items or required work from the operation of this Contract without incurring further liabilities on the part of City thereby.

SHOULD ANY BIDDER HAVE ANY QUESTIONS AS TO THE INTENT OR MEANING OF ANY PART OF THIS SOLICITATION IT SHOULD CONTACT THE PROCUREMENT DIVISION IN TIME TO RECEIVE A WRITTEN REPLY BEFORE SUBMITTING ITS BID.

All items furnished must be completely new, and free from defects unless specified otherwise. No others will be accepted under the terms and intent of this bid.

City reserves the right to terminate the Contract or Purchase Order at any time and for any reason by giving written notice to Contractor unless otherwise specified within the solicitation documents. If the Contract or Purchase Order is terminated for convenience as provided herein, City will be relieved of all further obligations other than payment for that amount of goods or services actually provided to the date of termination.

D.45. Right to Reject

City reserves the right to reject any or all bid(s), to waive minor irregularities and/or to accept the bid(s), which in its sole judgment best serves the interests of the City.

D.46. Samples

The samples submitted by bidders on items for which they have received an award may be retained by City until the delivery of contracted items is completed and accepted. Bidders whose samples are retained may remove them after delivery is accepted.

Samples on which bidders are unsuccessful must be removed as soon as possible after an award has been made on the item or items for which the samples have been submitted. The City will not be responsible for such samples if not removed by the bidder within thirty (30) days after the award has been made. The City reserves the right to consume any or all samples for testing purposes.

Bidders will make all arrangements for delivery of samples to place designated as well as the removal of samples. Cost of delivery and removal of samples will be borne by the bidder.

All sample packages will be marked "Sample for the Procurement Division" and each sample will bear the name of the bidder, item number, bid number and will be clearly tagged or marked in a substantial manner. Failure of the bidder to clearly identify samples as indicated may be considered sufficient reason for rejection of bid.

D.47. Solicitation Silence Policy

City's Procurement Division has implemented a Solicitation Silence Policy that prohibits certain oral communication regarding a solicitation during the period the policy is in effect. Written communications to the Chief of the Procurement Division or his or her

staff are allowed at all times.

Prohibitions

- Any oral communication regarding a particular solicitation is prohibited between a
 potential supplier, service provider, bidder, lobbyist, or consultant and City
 employees, staff, or hired consultant.
- b. Exceptions to the Solicitation Silence Policy Unless specifically provided in the applicable solicitation document, the Solicitation Silence Policy does not apply to the following:
 - communications regarding a particular solicitation between the Chief of the Procurement Division or his or her staff responsible for administering the procurement process for such solicitation, provided the communication is limited strictly to matters of process or procedure already contained in the corresponding solicitation document;
 - communications between a potential supplier, service provider, bidder, consultant, or lobbyist and City employees responsible for administering the Jacksonville Small Emerging Business Program, provided the communication is limited strictly to matters of programmatic process or procedures;
 - 3) communications with the Office of General Counsel and his or her staff;
 - 4) emergency procurement of goods and services pursuant to Chapter126.102(e), *Ordinance Code*;
 - 5) oral communications at pre-bid conferences;
 - 6) oral presentations before publicly noticed committee meetings;
 - 7) contract negotiations during any duly noticed public meeting;
 - 8) duly noticed site visits to determine competency of bidders during the period between bid opening and the issuance of the Chief of Procurement Division's written recommendation; and
 - 9) communications in writing at any time to the Chief of Procurement Division or his or her staff unless specifically prohibited by the applicable solicitations document.

Commencement and Termination of the Solicitation Silence Period

c. The period of Solicitation Silence commences after the advertisement of the solicitation document. The period of Solicitation Silence terminates after the Chief of the Procurement Division issues a written recommendation to the corresponding awarding committee. If the awarding committee refers the Chief's recommendation back for further review, the Solicitation Silence period shall be reinstated until such time as the Chief issues a subsequent recommendation.

Written Communication during the Solicitation Silence Period

d. When the Solicitation Silence period is in effect, any communication shall be in writing unless one of the exceptions applies. Written communication may be in the form of letter, email, or facsimile.

If Not an Exception

e. If an oral inquiry calls for an answer or response that is not within the scope of the exception, Bidder should request that the question be presented in writing to the Chief of the Procurement Division or his or her staff for a response.

D.48. State Contract

City reserves the right to utilize contracts established by the State of Florida and or other governmental agencies for items/ services covered under this bid. City reserves the right to cancel such Contract in whole or in part for such items or services.

D.49. Submission of Bids

All Bid submissions must be transmitted electronically through 1Cloud Supplier Portal included with the bid notification. It is the sole responsibility of the Supplier to ensure that its Bid response is submitted through 1Cloud supplier portal no later than the time and date specified in the Bid or subsequent addenda.

- a. Bidder is responsible for allowing adequate time to upload its submittal on 1Cloud before the electronic submission deadline. If technical difficulties arise during submission of the Bid response, it is the Bidder's responsibility to contact the Procurement Division representative at the phone number listed on the bid form. City shall not be responsible for delays caused in any occurrence.
- b. Submittals hand delivered or, sent by mail, facsimile, electronic mail, telephone, or any other means not specified herein will not be accepted. Bidder or Proposer may be allowed to withdraw its bid or proposal at any time prior to opening. Bid submittals may not be withdrawn after the bid due date. Once the Bid response is submitted, a confirmation number will appear on the Supplier Portal.
- c. Each Bid submittal must include the Bid Form with the signature in the space(s) provided of an officer or employee having authority to bind the Bidder. Only the terms and conditions of this Bid, as released by the Procurement Division or amended via addendum, are valid. Any modification to any term or condition by the Contractor is not binding unless it is expressly agreed to in writing by City.

D.50. Supplier Accessibility

City or its representative must be able to contact, during normal business hours, by telephone or email any supplier providing goods or services to City or its agencies. Any supplier accessibility requirements outlined in the specifications supersede this section.

D.51. Supplier Representation

If this Agreement is for goods or services of \$1 million or more, the City, pursuant to Section 287.135(3)(c), Florida Statutes, may terminate this Agreement at City's option if Contractor:

- a. Is found to have submitted a false certification under Section 287.135(5), Florida Statutes;
- b. Has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List created pursuant to Section 215.4725, Florida Statutes, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel;
- c. Has been placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List created pursuant to Section 215.473, Florida Statutes; or
- d. Has been engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

D.52. Taxes

The City of Jacksonville is exempt from the following taxes: (a) State of Florida Sales Tax by Certificate No 85-8012621607C-8; and, (b) Manufacturer's Federal Excise Tax Registration No. 59-6000.344.

D.53. W-9 Requirement

All bidders are encouraged to submit with their bid submission a revised W-9 if any company information has changed within the last six (6) months. It is the supplier's responsibility to ensure that the City has a current W-9 on file and is listed in the 1Cloud system.

E. Protest Procedures

E.1. Purpose and Scope

These protest procedures are promulgated pursuant to the Jacksonville Ordinance Code (the "Jax P-Code"), which authorizes the Jacksonville Procurement Awards Committee (the "JPAC") to prepare and publish rules and regulations governing bid protests. In the event a court of competent jurisdiction declares any provision of these Procurement Protest Procedures to be unconstitutional, invalid, or otherwise unenforceable, then all remaining provisions shall be severable, valid, and enforceable regardless of the invalidity of any other provision.

- 1. In accordance with the procedures contained herein, any actual or prospective respondent to a City of Jacksonville competitive solicitation, be it person or entity that is adversely affected by a decision or an intended decision concerning a solicitation, solicitation documents, award, or any other process or procedure prescribed in the Jax P-Code and who has standing to protest said decision or intended decision under Florida Law (the "Protestant"), must timely file awritten Notice of Protest seeking to challenge the decision or intended decision.
- 2. The issue(s) raised, andtheinformation contained in the Notice of Protestandary supplemental documentation filed must clearly identify and explain the factual and legal basis for any relief sought and shall be the only issue(s) and information the Protestant may present for consideration to the Chief of Procurement or before the JPAC.

E.2. Definitions

For these Protest Procedures, the following definitions are provided:

- 1. "Competitive solicitation" or "solicitation" shall include without limitation a formal invitation to bid, competitive sealed bid, multi-step competitive sealed bid, competitive sealed proposal, or a request for proposal sand/or qualifications.
- 2. "Posting"meansthenotification of solicitations, decisions or intended decision, or other matters relating to procure menton a centralized internet website, by placing the same on the bullet in board (s) designated by the Procurement Division for this purpose, or as may be consistent with the Jax P-Code.
- **3.** "Non-competitive purchase" means any single source procurement pursuant to the Jax P-Code and Section (4) (H) of the Procurement Operating Manual.
- **4.** "Electronic transfer" islimitedsolelytoemail transmissionsthat appearlegiblyonpaperto the Chief of Procurement.
- **5.** "Final agencyaction" means a final decision that results from a proceeding hereunder, and includes actions which are affirmative, negative, injunctive, or declaratory inform.
- **6.** "Procurement process" has the same meaning as "contract solicitation or award process."

E.3. Timely Notice of Protest

a. Recommendations of Award and/or Bid Rejection.

A Protestant shall have forty eight (48) hours after either the posting or written notification of a decision or intended decision, whichever is earlier, in which to file a written Notice of Protest in order to timely challenge or seek relief from a Procurement Division recommended award of an exceptional purchase or an award or recommended conclusion to any bid or proposal solicitation process, including without limitation: (i) a recommendation to reject a

bid or proposal; (ii) a contract award; or (iii) the short listing of bidders or proposers.

b. Bid/Proposal Specifications and/or Requirements.

A Protestant shall have ten (10) business days after the posting of a solicitation or forty eight (48) hours after the posted date and time of a pre-bid or pre-proposal conference, whichever is earlier, or forty eight (48) hours after the posting of an addendum, in which to file a written Notice of Protest in order to timely challenge the requirements, terms and/or conditions contained in bid or proposal documents, including without limitation any provisions governing or establishing: (i) the basis for making the award in question; (ii) evaluation criteria; (iii) equipment, product, or material specifications; (iv) proposed project schedules; (v) statements regarding participation goals or other equal opportunity measures; or (vi) other general solicitation or project requirements.

c. Computation of Time

Computation of the time limitations or periods contained herein shall be governed by and shall be pursuant to Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.090(a) Florida Rule of Judicial Administration 2.514. Failure to file a written Notice of Protest within the applicable time limitation or period shall constitute a waiver of any right, remedy, or relief available hereunder.

d. Form and Content of the Notice of Protest

A written Notice of Protest shall: (i) be addressed to the Chief;

(ii) identify the solicitation, decision, or recommended award in question by number and title or any other language sufficient to enable the Chief to identify the same; (iii) state the timeliness of the protest; (iv) state Protestant's legal standing to protest; and (v) clearly state with particularity the issue(s), material fact(s) and legal authority upon which the protest is based.

E.4. Request for Extension to File Supplemental Protest Documentation

At the time of filing a timely Notice of Protest hereunder, a Protestant may request an extension of three (3) business days after the date its Notice of Protest is timely received in which to provide supplemental protest documentation. Failure to do so or to timely submit the supplemental protest documentation shall constitute a waiver of any right to the same.

E.5. Delivery of Protest

The timely filing of a Notice of Protest shall be accomplished when said notice is received by the Procurement Division within the applicable time limitation or period contained herein. Filing a notice may be accomplished by manual transfer via hand-delivery or mail to the Chief of Procurement at 214 North Hogan Street, 8th floor, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 or by electronic transfer via facsimile to (904) 255-8837. The responsibility and burden of proof that its Notice of Protest has been timely and properly received shall rest with the Protestant, regardless as to the method of delivery employed.

E.6. Stay of Procurement During Protest

The City shall not proceed further with the competitive solicitation of or with the award of the contract until the purchasing agent, after consultation with the head of the using agency, makes a written determination that the award of the contract without delay is necessary to protect substantial interests of the City.

E.7. Authority to Resolve

Upon the receipt of a timely filed written Notice of Protest, the Chief of Procurement

shall have the authority to settle and resolve the timely filed protest.

- 1. Chief of Procurement Decision: If in working with the protestant, and the respective requirement owner/s (Using Agency), the Chief or his/her designee cannot settle or resolve the Protest, and there was not a mutual agreement made, the Chief shall promptly issue a decision in writing, emailed to the Protestant that states; the reasons for the action taken; and informs the Protestant of its right to an administrative review as provided in the Jax P-Code.
- **2. Administrative Review Protest:** The Protestant shall have forty-eight (48) hours after receiving the written decision via email from the Chief or his/her designee to timely file a protest seeking JPACs administrative review of the originally filed protest. This protest shall follow the same methods of format and delivery previously used for the original protest.

E.8. JPAC Administrative Review Process

Upon receipt of a timely filed protest requesting an administrative review. The Chief or his/her designee shall schedule and provide the aggrieved respondent with notice of the time, date, and place where the administrative review will be heard. Any other actual or prospective respondents, other than the Protestant, who will be directly affected by the resolution of the protest shall also be given notice of the protest hearing, the Notice of Protest, and any supplemental protest documentation shall be made available to them upon a written request for the same.

- 1. **JPAC Procedures:**Hearings hereunder shall begin with a general statement of the rules and procedures prescribed herein by a representative of the committee, followed by a general statement of the facts by a representative of the Procurement Division. Representatives of the Protestant, limited solely to its owners, officers, employees and/or legal counsel, will then be required to present its case based solely upon the issue(s) and information contained in the Notice of Protest and any timely submitted supplemental protest documentation.
- 2. All respondents or potential respondents to the intended decision in question, who would be directly affected by the resolution of the protest shall be given an opportunity to be heard and to present information before the committee, which will be followed by a statement and the presentation of information from the Procurement Division and other governmental representatives. The Protestant must establish by the preponderance of the evidence that the protest should be granted based upon the law, facts and information presented. The committee is entitled to ask questions of any party at any time during the hearing.
- 3. For hearings hereunder, the formal rules of evidence pursuant to the Florida Evidence Code may be relaxed at the sole discretion of the presiding chairperson of the applicable committee. Hearsay evidence may be admissible and used to supplement or explain other evidence.
- 4. Unless otherwise provided by the Code, the burdenof proof shallrest with the Protestant. The standardofproofforproceedingshereunder shallbe whetheraProcurement Divisionrecommendationorthe decisionorintended decisioninquestionwasclearly erroneous, arbitrary, or capricious, fraudulent, or otherwise without any basis in factor law. In any protest proceeding challenging adecision or intended decision to replies, the standardof review shall be whether the decision or intended decision is illegal, arbitrary, dishonest, or fraudulent.
- 5. Amajorityvoteofthemembersoftheapplicable committee shallberequiredtogranta protest,hereunder; otherwise,theprotestshallbedenied,and,uponexecution bythemayororhis

designee, said vote and/ordecision of the JPAC shall be posted and shall represent final agency action.

E.9. Independent Agency, Board, or Delegated Authority

If a protest is filed and the solicitation is for the benefit of an independent agency, board, or delegated authority that has its own established procurement procedure and does not use the city's procurement process and/or protest procedures, then the person or entity protesting must follow the protest procedures of that independent agency, board, or delegated authority.

F. Addenda

F.1. Amendments / Addenda

All addenda will be listed here accordingly. Addenda are issued for clarification of information provided with the above titled project and will become part of the solicitation. If an addendum is issued after a Supplier has already submitted a response to the solicitation, the Supplier will be required to acknowledge the addendum to validate its response again. If this is not done, the submission will be withdrawn and cannot be considered. It is recommended that all suppliers check the system for any addenda they may have missed prior to the electronic submission deadline.